
Waikato District Council 
Discretionary & Funding Committee 1 Agenda: 19 November 2020

Agenda for a meeting of the Discretionary & Funding Committee to be held in Committee 
Rooms 1 & 2, District Office, 15 Galileo Street, Ngaruawahia on THURSDAY 19 
NOVEMBER 2020 commencing at 9.30am. 

Information and recommendations are included in the reports to assist the Committee in the decision making process and may not 
constitute Council’s decision or policy until considered by the Committee. 

1. APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

2. CONFIRMATION OF STATUS OF AGENDA

3. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

4. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Meeting held on Wednesday 26 August 2020 3

5. REPORTS

5.1 Summary of Movements in Discretionary Funds to 31 October 2020 8 

5.2 Summary of Current Grant Requests as at 31 October 2020 10 

6. APPLICATIONS FOR FUNDING

6.1 Let's Get Together Huntly - Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show 14 

6.2 Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade - Certification for Personal  
Watercraft Training 45 

6.3 Pukemokemoke Bush Trust - Extending the existing car park boundary 67 

6.4 Puketaha School - Cricket batting area upgrade 102 

6.5 Waitetuna School - Purchase a new set of rugby goal posts 149 

GJ Ion 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
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Waikato District Council 
Discretionary & Funding Committee 2 Agenda: 19 November 2020

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DELEGATION 

Reports to: The Council 

Chairperson: Cr Shelley Lynch 

Membership: Deputy Chairperson: Cr Rob McGuire 
Cr Stephanie Henderson 
Cr Lisa Thomson 
Cr Chris Woolerton 

Meeting frequency: As required 

Quorum: A majority of members (including vacancies) 

Purpose 

1. To consider applications of funding for the Discretionary Grants Fund, and recommendations  for
funding applications for the Heritage Assistance Fund and Conservation Fund in accordance with
Council policy and strategy.

Terms of Reference: 

1. To determine funding applications for the Discretionary Grants Fund in accordance with the
Discretionary Grants Policy and Guidelines, in a fair and just manner.

2. To determine recommendations for funding applications for the Heritage Assistance Fund and
Conservation Fund in accordance with Council policy.

3. To monitor and review the work of the Creative Communities Scheme Assessment Committee on
a regular basis.

4. To prioritise allocation of funding for community activities in accordance with Council policy and
strategy.

The Committee is delegated the following powers to act: 

• Approval of funding applications for the Events Fund and Rural Ward Fund within the funds
allocated by the Council on an annual basis (other than those applications to be determined by
the relevant community board or community committee).

• Approval of funding applications for any other community-based funding as delegated to the
committee by the Council.

Explanatory Note 

• The committee may make recommendations to the Council or any other Council committee in
relation to decisions that fall outside its terms of reference or delegations.
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Page 1  Version 4.0 

Open Meeting 

To 
From 

Date 
Prepared by 

Chief Executive Approved 
Reference # 
Report Title 

Discretionary & Funding 
Gavin Ion 
Chief Executive 
15 October 2020
Grace Brady 
Democracy Advisor 
Y 
Gov1318 
Confirmation of Minutes 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To confirm the minutes of a meeting of the Discretionary & Funding Committee held on 
Wednesday 26 August 2020. 

2. RECOMMENDATION

THAT the minutes of a meeting of the Discretionary & Funding Committee held 
on Wednesday 26 August 2020 be confirmed as a true and correct record of that 
meeting. 

3. ATTACHMENTS

D&F Minutes - Wednesday 26 August 2020 
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Waikato District Council 
Discretionary & Funding Committee 1  Minutes: 26 August 2020 

MINUTES of a meeting of the Discretionary & Funding Committee held in Council 
Chambers, 15 Galileo Street, Ngaruawahia on WEDNESDAY, 26 AUGUST 2020 
commencing at 9.30am. 

Present: 

Cr SD Lynch (Chairperson) 
Cr SL Henderson 
Cr LR Thomson 
Cr CT Woolerton 
His Worship the Mayor, Mr AM Sanson [from 9.32am] 

Attending: 

Mr C Morgan (Community Growth Manager) 
Mr N Johnston (Funding and Partnership Manager) 
Mrs L van den Bemd (Community Development Adviser) 
Ms G Brady (Democracy Advisor) 

Mr S Cox (Dynamo Cycling and Sports Club) 
Mr C Hickey (Te Kauwhata A&P Association) 
Ms A Taylor (Number 8 Network Group) 
Ms D Brown (Te Akau Waingaro Community Complex) 

APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Resolved: (Crs Woolerton/Thomson) 

THAT an apology be received from Cr McGuire. 

CARRIED D&F2008/01 

CONFIRMATION OF STATUS OF AGENDA ITEMS 

Resolved: (Crs Woolerton/Thomson) 

THAT the agenda for a meeting of the Discretionary & Funding Committee held 
on Wednesday, 26 August 2020 be confirmed and all items therein be 
considered in open meeting; 

AND THAT all reports be received. 

CARRIED D&F2008/02 
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Waikato District Council 
Discretionary & Funding Committee 2  Minutes: 26 August 2020 

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

Cr Henderson advised members of the Board that she would declare a non financial conflict 
of interest in item 6.2 [Te Kauwhata A&P show – Annual event] as she intended to be a 
competitor at the show. 

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

Resolved: (Crs Lynch/Woolerton) 

THAT the minutes of a meeting of the Discretionary & Funding Committee held 
on Wednesday, 4 March 2020 be confirmed as a true and correct record of that 
meeting. 

CARRIED D&F2008/03 

REPORTS 

Summary of Movements in Discretionary Funds to 30 June 2020 
Agenda Item 5.1 

The report was received [D&F2002/01 refers]. No discussion was held. 

 

Summary of Current Grant Requests as at 31 July 2020 
Agenda Item 5.2 

The report was received [D&F2002/01 refers]. No discussion was held. 

APPLICATIONS FOR FUNDING 

The following applicants were present to answer questions from the committee: 
 
• Dynamo Cycling and Sports Club – 2020 Road Cycling Event. Mr Steven Cox 

summarised the application. The club had planned alternative dates for each of the series’ 
events in case of Covid-19 disruptions, as well as the incorporation of Alert Level health 
and safety guidelines. 

 
• Te Kauwhata A&P Show – Annual Event. Mr Colin Hickey, President of Te Kauwhata 

A&P Association, summarised the application. Mr Hickey confirmed that no overheads 
would need to be met for the December event, should it need to be cancelled due to 
the impact of Covid-19.  

 
• Number 8 Network – Website Training. Ms Annette Taylor summarised the application. 

The magazine was currently on hold due to insufficient funding. Funding was sought for 
training in advanced WordPress use. The applicant planned to share the training gained 
with those running similar websites, such as the Tamahere forum. The Committee 
supported this. In response, the Community Development Adviser suggested the 
applicant liaise with local high school students interested in IT training work placements.  
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Waikato District Council 
Discretionary & Funding Committee 3  Minutes: 26 August 2020 

• Te Akau Waingaro Community Complex – Upgrade and Extend Storage Shed. Ms
Dianne Brown, Treasurer, summarised the application. Details of the upgrade and
extension were given, which would protect equipment which had been damaged and
stolen in the past.

His Worship the Mayor, Mr AM Sanson joined the meeting at 9.32am during the above item. 

The meeting adjourned at 9.58am and resumed at 10.36am.  

His Worship the Mayor, Mr AM Sanson left the meeting at 9.58am. 

DECISIONS

Dynamo Cycling and Sports Club Inc. - 2020 Road Cycling Event 
Agenda Item 6.1 

The report was received [D&F2002 refers] and discussion was held. 

Resolved:  (Crs Thomson/Henderson) 

THAT an allocation of $6,000.00 is made to Dynamo Cycling and Sports Club 
towards the costs of the 2020 Road Cycling Event. 

CARRIED D&F2008/04 

His Worship the Mayor, Mr AM Sanson rejoined the meeting at 10.37am during discussion 
of the above item and was present when voting took place.  

Te Kauwhata A&P show – Annual event 
Agenda Item 6.2 

The report was received [D&F2002 refers] and discussion was held. 

Resolved:  (Cr Woolerton/His Worship the Mayor) 

THAT an allocation of $8784.00 is made to the Te Kauwhata A&P Association 
towards the cost of the 2020 A&P annual event. 

CARRIED D&F2008/05 

Rural - Number 8 Network - Website Training 
Agenda Item 6.3 

The report was received [D&F2002 refers] and discussion was held. 

• The Committee supported the magazine but were concerned about the cost of training.
Broader investment was required in training community organisations rather than
supporting one individual.
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Discretionary & Funding Committee 4  Minutes: 26 August 2020 

ACTION: Staff to coordinate with the applicant to ensure that training would subsequently 
be shared with other community members, including high school students looking for work 
experience placements. 

Resolved:  (His Worship the Mayor/Cr Woolerton) 

THAT an allocation of $874.00 is made to the Number 8 Network Group 
towards the cost of one-on-one website training. 

CARRIED D&F2008/06 
 

Te Akau Wainagaro Community Complex Inc. - Upgrade and extend storage shed 
Agenda Item 6.4 

The report was received [D&F2002 refers] and discussion was held. 

• The Committee supported this application, particularly with the resultant futureproofing 
against theft. 

Resolved:  (Crs Woolerton/Henderson) 

THAT an allocation of $7,000.00 is made to Te Akau Waingaro Community 
Complex towards the cost of an upgrade and extension of the storage shed. 

CARRIED D&F2008/07 

 

There being no further business the meeting was declared closed at  11.03am. 
 
Minutes approved and confirmed this                          day of                                      2020. 
 

 

 

SD Lynch 
CHAIRPERSON 

7



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 1  Version 4.0 

Open Meeting 
 

To Discretionary & Funding Committee 
From Alison Diaz 

Chief Financial Officer 
Date 06 November 2020 

Prepared by Jean de Abreu 
Support Accountant 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference/Doc Set # GOV1318 

Report Title Summary of Current Grant Requests as at 
31 October 2020 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
To present to the Discretionary & Funding Committee a Summary of Current Grant Requests 
as at 31 October 2020. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the report from the Chief Financial Officer be received. 

3. ATTACHMENTS 
 
Summary of Current Grant Requests as at 31 October 2020 
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Summary of Current Grant Requests 
Funding Round 31 Oct 2020
Discretionary & Funding Committee 

Events Fund 
Net funding remaining after commitments as of 31 October 2020 42,053.00             

Projects Requested
 Amount 
Requested Project Cost  

The project is noted to cost $6,478.26. Let’s Get Together Huntly is seeking funding of 

$2,565.23 towards the cost of the Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show
2,565.23 6,478.26           

2,565.23 6,478.26          

Rural Ward Fund

Net funding remaining after commitments as of 31 October 2020 37,864.78             

Projects Requested

 Amount 
Requested  Project Cost  

The project is noted to cost $9,251.80. NVFB is seeking funding of 9,251.80 towards the 

cost of Certification Training for Personal Water Craft Training (Jet Skis) enabling Swift 
Water Rescue (six people), plus multiple clothing and Water Safety Kits.

9,251.80             9,251.80 

The project is noted to cost $4,074.35. Waitetuna School is seeking funding of $4,074.35 

towards the cost of purchasing a new set of rugby goal posts.

4,074.35             4,074.35 

The project is noted to cost $40,000.00. Pukemokemoke Bush Trust is seeking funding of 
$7,187.00 towards the cost of extending the existing car park boundary.

7,187.00           40,000.00 

The project is noted to cost $25,245.00. Puketaha School is seeking funding of $5,250.00 

towards the cost of a cricket batting area upgrade, that includes nets and artificial turf

5,250.00           25,245.00 

25,763.15             78,571.15        

Note: grants up to $5000 can be funded up to 100% at the discretion of the relevant community board or committee or Council’s 

Discretionary & Funding Committee.  For grants above $5000 a funding cap of 75% of the total project cost applies (whichever is the greater). 

The total amount granted is at the discretion of the committee/board to which the grant is assigned.
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Open Meeting 
 

To Discretionary & Funding Committee 
From Alison Diaz 

Chief Financial Officer 
Date 11 November 2020 

Prepared by Jean de Abreu 
Support Accountant 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference # GOV1318 
Report Title Summary of Movements in Discretionary Funds to 

31 October 2020 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
To present to the Discretionary & Funding Committee a summarised report giving balances 
of all discretionary funds including commitments as at 31 October 2020. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the report from the Chief Financial Officer be received. 

3. ATTACHMENTS 
 
Summary of Movements in Discretionary Funds to 31 October 2020 
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Summary of Movements in Discretionary Funds

As of 31 October 2020

Event Carry Annual Plan Plus Less Net Less Funding

Funding Forward Budget Income / Grants Expenditure Funding Commitments Remaining

Code 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 Remaining 2020/21 after

2020/21 Commitments

Huntly GL 1.204.1704 41,384.00                  24,026.00                    -                          6,460.60                  58,949.40                   28,781.91           30,167.49                  

Meremere GL 1.209.1704 15,247.00                  1,550.00                      -                          -                            16,797.00                   443.87                16,353.13                  

Ngaruawahia GL 1.205.1704 63,721.00                  20,999.00                    -                          -                            84,720.00                   48,451.51           36,268.49                  

Onewhero Tuakau GL 1.215.1704 65,296.00                  28,878.00                    -                          12,706.78                81,467.22                   28,810.87           52,656.35                  

Raglan GL 1.206.1704 8,002.00                     14,271.00                    -                          3,500.00                  18,773.00                   3,000.00             15,773.00                  

Tamahere Community Committee PR 2GD-25600-E-0-1700-0000 7,411.00                     4,000.00                      -                          -                            11,411.00                   -                       11,411.00                  

Taupiri GL 1.208.1704 4,740.00                     1,624.00                      -                          -                            6,364.00                     722.96                5,641.04                     

Te Kauwhata GL 1.207.1704 42,189.00                  4,198.00                      -                          2,063.48                  44,323.52                   16,727.75           27,595.77                  

Heritage Project Fund PR 5CG5-7000-E0-1700-0000 119,037.00                40,000.00                    -                          -                            159,037.00                 4,999.00             154,038.00                

Conservation Fund Grant GL 1-525-1410 117,225.00                33,711.00                    -                          25,288.29                125,647.71                 28,964.15           96,683.56                  

Heritage Assistance Fund PR 5CG5-6000-E0-1700-0000 98,525.00                  20,051.00                    -                          4,000.00                  114,576.00                 -                       114,576.00                

Events Management PR 5CG-51000-E-0-1700-0000 18,551.00                  38,286.00                    -                          14,784.00                42,053.00                   -                       42,053.00                  

Rural Ward GL 1.202.1704 21,320.00                  30,963.00                    3,271.40                11,434.75                44,119.65                   6,254.87             37,864.78                  

Mayoral Fund GL 1-202-1705 1,916.00                     8,000.00                      -                          2,900.00                  7,016.00                     -                       7,016.00                     

Community Administration Funding GL 1-210-1689 34,152.00                  10,000.00                    -                          -                            44,152.00                   7,319.48             36,832.52                  

Totals 658,716.00               280,557.00                3,271.40               83,137.90               859,406.50                174,476.37        684,930.13               

JD 4/11/2020
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EVENTS MANAGEMENT FUND DISCRETIONARY FUND REPORT (July 2020 - June 2021)

As at Date: 31-Oct-2020

PR 5CG51000
2020/2021 Annual Plan 38,286.00 

Carry forward from 2019/2020 18,551.00 

Total Funding 56,837.00 

Income

Total Income - 

Expenditure
31-Aug-20 Dynamo Cycling & Sports Club Inc. – 2020 Road Cycling Event D&F 2008/04 6,000.00 

31-Aug-20 Te Kauwhata A&P Association for the 2020 A&P Annual Event D&F2008/05 8,784.00 

Total Expenditure 14,784.00 

Net Funding Remaining (Excluding commitments) 42,053.00 

Commitments

Total Commitments - 

Net Funding Remaining (Including commitments) 42,053.00 

JD 4/11/2020
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RURAL WARD DISCRETIONARY FUND 2020/21 (July 2020 - June 2021)

As at Date: 31-Oct-2020
GL

1.202.1704
2020/21 Annual Plan 30,963.00 

Carry forward from 2019/20 21,320.00

Total Funding 52,283.00       

Income
31-Jul-20 The Hukanui Golf Club - CTR 4428 - Part Grant refund INV-

0530 3,271.40 

Total Income 3,271.40         

Expenditure
31-Aug-20 Waikare Golf Club - Refurbishment of Clubhouse

Furniture

D&F2003/06

4,434.75 

10-Sep-20 Te Akau Waingaro Community Complex - upgrade and 

extension of the storage shed

D&F2008/07

7,000.00 

Total Expenditure 11,434.75       

Net Funding Remaining (Excluding commitments) 44,119.65       

Commitments

28-Nov-17 Pokeno Community Committee - annual servicing fee for the 

AED machine

D&F1711/17 595.00 

01-Mar-20 Number 8 Network Group – Home Range Rural Newspaper D&F2003/06

4,785.87

26-Aug-20 Number 8 Network Group – Cost of one-on-one website 

training 

D&F2008/06

874.00

Total Commitments 6,254.87         

Net Funding Remaining (Including commitments) 37,864.78       

JD 4/11/2020
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Open Meeting 
 

To Discretionary and Funding Committee 
From Clive Morgan 

General Manager Community Growth 
Date 28 October 2020 

Prepared by Lianne van den Bemd 
 Community Development Advisor 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference  # GOV0514 / 2925427 
Report Title Let’s Get Together Huntly – Huntly 2021 Inaugural  

Classic Car Show 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present an application for funding from Let’s Get Together 
Huntly (Under the umbrella of the Waikato Enterprise Agency) towards the cost of the Huntly 
2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the report from the General Manager Community Growth be received. 
 
AND THAT an allocation of $............................... is made to Let’s Get Together 
Huntly towards the cost of the Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show; 
 
OR 
 
AND THAT the request from Let’s Get Together Huntly towards the cost of the 
Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show is declined / deferred until 
……………………. for the following reasons: 

3. BACKGROUND 
Let’s Get Together Huntly (Under the umbrella of Waikato Enterprise Agency) is organising 
the Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show with entertainment. 40 volunteers from the 
community and local Lion Club members will help to organise the event, which will take place 
27 February 2021 at Allen Fabrics Ltd at the East Mine site. 
 

14



Page 2  Version 4.0 

Exhibitors will include local community members. Visitors can enjoy the outdoor event in a 
historical setting, with great music while show casing the amazing classic car line-up from 
Huntly and surrounding areas. 
 
Options Considered 
 
4.1 That the application is approved and an allocation of partial or full funding requested 

by made. 
4.2  That the application is declined. 
4.3  That the application is deferred. 

4. FINANCIAL 
 
Funding is available to allocate for the year. 
 
The project is noted to cost $6,478.26. Let’s Get Together Huntly is seeking funding of 
$2,565.23 towards the cost of the Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show. 
 

GST Registered Yes 

Set of Accounts supplied Yes 

Previous funding has been received by this organisation in the past two 
years 

No 

5. POLICY 
 

The application meets the criteria set in the Discretionary Grants Policy, one of which is that 
grants of $5,000.00 can be funded up to 100 percent at the discretion of the relevant 
community board or committee or Council’s Discretionary and Funding Committee. 

For grants above $5,000.00, a funding cap of 75 percent of the total project cost applies and 
other funding needs to be sought. 

Funds cannot be uplifted until all sufficient funds for the project are approved. 

6. ATTACHMENT 
 
Let’s Get Together Huntly – Huntly 2021 Inaugural Classic Car Show 
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128
Date : 22/10/2020

EVENT HOST - 
MC PRESENTER  
VOICE-OVERS

GST - 24-947-920 Payment Terms Due Date

ANZ Frankton Hamilton 010311 0152255 00 Due upon receipt

Quantity Description Unit Price Line Total

MC Services for 

Lake Hop - Classic Car Show 870.00$              

Saturday - Feb 27th 2021

10am - 3pm

Much appreciated

Jean Beverland  Co - organiser  07- 8289612

Subtotal

15.00% 130.50$               

1,000.50$            

QUOTE

Sales Tax @

TOTAL

Make all checks payable to PHILLIPS ENTERTAINMENT and PROMOTIONS.

125 Newwcastle Road
Hamilton 3204

Email : ronny@ronnyphillips.co.nz               021 644045

Let's Get Together

Appreciate your business - Thank you. 

46 William St
Huntly 3700
wribev4567@gmail.com

PHILLIPS ENTERTAINMENT and PROMOTIONS
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LAKE HOP:   FUNDING REQUIRED

COSTS 

Music Huntly Jam Night Group 

Donation 

$1000.00 Donation to 

Port a Loos  5 plus wheelchair one $950.00 Less GST 

$826.09 

Waikato District Council 

Marquees Donated Donated 

Prize Money $1000.00 Less GST 

$869.57 

Waikato District Council 

Public Liability Donated: 

Allen Fabrics Ltd 

Ex East Mine 

Huntly Lions will 
provide Traffic 
Management 

Donation  $500.00 Donation to 

Master of 
Ceremonies 

$1000.00 Less GST Waikato District Council 
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$869.57 

SUB TOTAL  $4450.00 Less GST 

$2565.23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Entry Fees  $5.00 per Classic Car 

x 200 

$1000.00   

Signage  $3000.00  WEL  
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Performance Report
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Prepared by Bizworx Consultancy Limited
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Approval of Performance Report
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

The Trustees are pleased to present the approved performance report including the historical financial statements of Waikato
Enterprise Agency for year ended 30 June 2019.

 

 

APPROVED

                                                          

Trustee:   .....................................

Position: .....................................

Date ............................................

                                                          

Trustee:   .....................................

Position: .....................................

Date ............................................
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Entity Information
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Legal Name of Entity

Waikato Enterprise Agency

Other Name (inc Trading Name):

Huntly i-SITE

Raglan i-SITE

Hampton i [information centre]

Entity Type and Legal Basis

Registered Charity 

Registration Number

CC42374

Entity's Purpose or Mission

Our mission is to "Move People Forward".

Entity Structure

The Waikato Enterprise Agency is a registered charity that has been delivering community and economic development programs
and services since 1987.  We have extensive networks and links into the New Zealand economic and social sectors combined
with key relationships with the Waikato and Auckland communities for over 25 years.  The agency is committed to the
innovation and evolution of its services, providing training opportunities that deliver value to businesses and organisations.

Governance: Trustees meet regularly to oversee the operations of the Agency and i-SITES / Information Centres, and to
determine strategic direction.

Operations:   Employees attend to the day to day running of the Agency and i-SITES / Information Centres, assisted by
volunteers.

Main Sources of Entity's Cash and Resources

Contracts with local and central government for services related to community development, including the provision of advice,
information, and training opportunities, and operation of the Huntly and Raglan i-SITES and Hampton i [information centre], are
the main sources of income.

Main Methods Used by Entity to Raise Funds

The Waikato Enterprise Agency seeks contracts with local and central government to develop, produce, and deliver life skills and
cognitive programs into Waikato communities, and to maintain the i-SITES and Information Centres in Huntly, Raglan, and
Hampton Downs as part of their community development strategies.  

Entity's Reliance on Volunteers and Donated Goods or Services

 The Waikato Enterprise Agency is reliant on volunteers for donated time to assist with governance and operations.  
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Physical Address

c/- Friendship House, Huntly - 55 William Street, Huntly, Waikato, New Zealand, 3700

Postal Address

PO BOX 54, Huntly, Waikato, New Zealand,  3740 
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Statement of Service Performance
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Description of Entity's Outcomes

Delivered the skills for life programs for the Central Waikato Corrections Department encompassing Springhill Correctional
Facility, and Waikeria and Tongariro Prisons, from the 1st July 2018 to the 30th June 2019.    

Provided team building and facilitation training to i-SITE / information centre staff.

Engaged with the community both as an organisation and as individuals.      

Provided high quality levels of information, bookings and product sales to locals, domestic and international visitors to the
Huntly and Raglan i-SITES as well as the Hampton i [information centre] located at Hampton Downs Motorsport Park.

Ensured all tourism staff had reached at least level 3 or have started level 3. 

Grew the number of tourist operators advertising and selling products and services through the i-SITES.  Improved product
knowledge and retail skills.

Description and quantification of Outputs

 

   This year  Last year

Skills for life programs delivered across three sites  83 [82.5]  83

Trainees completed and graduated with average class size of 8.5  712  726

Programs that retained 100% of trainees through to graduation 57%  59%

Trainees self identified as Maori  50%  63%

Percentage identified as Kinaesthetic learners  40%  32%

Facilitators / i-SITE staff attending internal and external additional training  5  7

Staff attending Tourism Conference -  South Island [2018 - National Park]  0 3 

Not for profit groups umbrellaed for funding applications and assisted with reporting  1  1

 i-SITE / Information Centre days open  364  364

 i-SITE / Information Centre hours open - average per week  65  65

Commission sales made on behalf of operators that advertise at i-SITE / Information
Centre

 $79,931  $101,703

 Number of people visiting both i-SITES and/or Information Centre and received
assistance

 108,541  146,203

Support Raglan Museum by collecting museum entry donations with no commission  $7,521  $8,968
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Additional Output Measures

• No commissions charged for community groups in Raglan
• Provided JP services for the Huntly and wider communities
• Assisted the North Waikato Transport Trust with photocopying
• Assisted Friendship House with photocopying
• Staff engagement in community activities on a voluntary basis was a total of 1,654 hours for the year (an average of 31.8

hours per week)  [2018:  2,284 hours for the year (an average of 43.9 hours per week)]

Additional Information

Staff levels decreased from 18 to 9 by the end of the 2019 financial year.  This includes full-time and part-time staff.

Huntly i-SITE closed at the end of March 2019.

Raglan i-SITE which was expected to be tendered at the end of March 2019, was extended to the end of June 2019.  A new
contract was awarded to Raglan i-SITE in June 2019, to conclude March 2020.
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Statement of Financial Performance
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

NOTES 2019 2018

Revenue
Donations, fundraising and other similar revenue 1 308 7,937

Revenue from providing goods or services 1 710,943 725,470

Interest, dividends and other investment revenue 1 4,690 898

Other revenue 1 2,435 -

Total Revenue 718,376 734,305

Expenses
Volunteer and employee related costs 2 515,359 538,783

Costs related to providing goods or service 2 249,001 261,637

Grants and donations made 2 300 8,047

Total Expenses 764,659 808,466

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year (46,283) (74,161)
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Statement of Financial Position
Waikato Enterprise Agency
As at 30 June 2019

NOTES 30 JUN 2019 30 JUN 2018

Assets
Current Assets

Bank accounts and cash 3 182,810 235,979

Debtors and prepayments 3 10,569 10,029

Inventory 3 20,862 31,891
Total Current Assets 214,242 277,900

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 21,370 24,476
Total Non-Current Assets 21,370 24,476

Total Assets 235,611 302,376

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Creditors and accrued expenses 4 20,486 39,989

Other current liabilities 4 - 979
Total Current Liabilities 20,486 40,968

Total Liabilities 20,486 40,968

Total Assets less Total Liabilities (Net Assets) 215,125 261,409

Accumulated Funds
Accumulated surpluses or (deficits) 6 214,774 261,058

Reserves 6 351 351

Total Accumulated Funds 215,125 261,409
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Statement of Cash Flows
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Donations, fundraising and other similar receipts 308 7,937

Fees, subscriptions and other receipts from members 3,407 4,391

Interest, dividends and other investment receipts 4,690 898

Cash receipts from other operating activities 701,992 710,953

GST (5,004) (230)

Payments to suppliers and employees (753,411) (788,039)

Donations or grants paid (300) (8,047)

Cash flows from other operating activities (1,889) (2,043)

Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities (50,207) (74,179)

Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,435 348

Proceeds from loans borrowed from other parties 737 1,833

Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment (4,911) (22,172)

Repayments of loans borrowed from other parties (1,716) (3,743)

Capital repaid to owners or members - 846

Cash Flows from Other Investing and Financing Activities 494 780

Total Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities (2,961) (22,108)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash (53,169) (96,287)

Cash Balances
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 235,979 332,266

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 182,810 235,979

Net change in cash for period (53,169) (96,287)
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Statement of Accounting Policies
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Reporting Entity

Waikato Enterprise Agency is a Charitable Trust that has been re-registered under the Charities Act 2005.  

Basis of Preparation

Waikato Enterprise Agency has elected to apply PBE SFR-A (NFP) Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting - Accrual
(Not-For-Profit) on the basis that it does not have public accountability and has total annual expenses equal to or less than
$2,000,000. All transactions in the Performance Report are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The Performance
Report is prepared under the assumption that the entity will continue to operate in the foreseeable future.

Historical Cost

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars (NZ$) and all values are rounded to the nearest NZ$, except when otherwise indicated.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The entity is registered for GST. All amounts are stated exclusive of goods and services tax (GST) except for accounts payable
and accounts receivable which are stated inclusive of GST.

Income Tax

Waikato Enterprise Agency is wholly exempt from New Zealand income tax having fully complied with all statutory conditions
for these exemptions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services, excluding
goods and services tax rebates and discounts, to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and
revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest received is recognised as interest accrues, gross of refundable tax credits received.
Government grants are recognised as revenue on receipt where no performance conditions have been specified on receipt of the
grant.

Bank Accounts and Cash

Bank accounts and cash in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash balances and bank balances (including short term
deposits) with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Account Receivable

Accounts receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Individual debts that are known to be uncollectable are
written off in the period that they are identified.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in-first-out basis, and net realisable value.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of assets, and includes the cost of replacements that are
eligible for capitalisation when these are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Upon derecognition, the asset revaluation reserve relating to the asset disposed shall be transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation

Asset Category  Method  Rate

 Buildings & Improvements  Straight Line  2.0% - 5.0%

 Motor Vehicles  Straight Line  20.0%

 Furniture & Fixtures  Straight Line  10.0% - 20.0%

 Office Equipment  Straight Line  5.0% - 36.0%

 Computer Equipment & Software  Straight Line  25.0% - 36.0%

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies. Policies have been applied on a consistent basis with those of the previous
reporting period.
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Notes to the Performance Report
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019

NOTES 2019 2018

1. Analysis of Revenue
Donations, fundraising and other similar revenue

Agency fundraising revenue
Donations received 308 7,937
Total Agency fundraising revenue 308 7,937

Total Donations, fundraising and other similar revenue 308 7,937

Revenue from providing goods or services

Agency goods and services revenue
Department of Corrections contracts 332,500 331,000

Secretarial services 100 168

Other goods and services revenue 24 2,153
Total Agency goods and services revenue 332,624 333,321

Hampton Downs i-Site goods and services revenue
Shop sales 25,055 1,431

Accommodation and activities income 28,523 139

Ticket Sales 723 -

Phone and stamps sales 10 -

Other goods and services revenue 7,327 22
Total Hampton Downs i-Site goods and services revenue 61,638 1,592

Huntly i-Site goods and services revenue
Waikato District Council income 58,129 75,650

Shop sales 9,788 22,604

Accommodation and activities income 6,308 16,501

Ticket sales 8,765 12,484

Phone and stamps sales 970 2,841

Green Cathedral income 261 357

Other goods and services revenue 1,401 2,814
Total Huntly i-Site goods and services revenue 85,623 133,251

Raglan i-Site goods and services revenue
Waikato District Council income 119,499 116,355

Shop sales 7,223 10,931

Accommodation and activities income 87,406 91,460

Ticket sales 4,132 21,909

Phone and stamps income 1,753 2,046

Museum income 8,778 11,169

Other goods and services revenue 2,265 3,435
Total Raglan i-Site goods and services revenue 231,057 257,306

Total Revenue from providing goods or services 710,943 725,470
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Interest, dividends and other investment revenue
Interest income 4,690 898
Total Interest, dividends and other investment revenue 4,690 898

Other revenue
Gain on sale/disposal of assets 2,435 -
Total Other revenue 2,435 -

NOTES 2019 2018

2. Analysis of Expenses
Volunteer and employee related costs

Agency employee related costs
ACC 696 492

Wages 248,897 267,883
Total Agency employee related costs 249,593 268,375

Agency volunteer related costs
Trustee expenses 1,889 2,043
Total Agency volunteer related costs 1,889 2,043

Hampton Downs i-Site employee related costs
ACC 249 -

Wages 79,387 9,201
Total Hampton Downs i-Site employee related costs 79,636 9,201

Huntly i-Site employee related costs
ACC 522 492

Wages 64,845 113,997
Total Huntly i-Site employee related costs 65,367 114,489

Raglan i-Site employee related costs
ACC 522 492

Wages 118,352 144,183
Total Raglan i-Site employee related costs 118,874 144,675

Total Volunteer and employee related costs 515,359 538,783

Costs related to providing goods or services

Agency goods, services, and administration expenses
Advertising and marketing 442 817

Audit fees 867 1,296

Bank fees 664 743

Conferences and professional development 12,260 10,829

Equipment replacements 482 286

General expenses 185 1,429

Legal, Accounting, Consultants 1,427 44

Loss on disposal of assets - 235

Insurance - 3,746

Printing, stationery, postage, office supplies 26,880 27,630

Repairs and maintenance 241 217

Subscriptions and publications 1,248 1,569

Telephone 2,873 3,259
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Travel expenses - 851

Vehicle expenses 14,509 16,843
Total Agency goods, services, and administration expenses 62,077 69,795

Hampton Downs i-Site cost of goods and services
Accommodation and activities purchases 19,740 -

Stock purchases and packaging 16,361 -
Total Hampton Downs i-Site cost of goods and services 36,100 -

Hampton Downs i-Site administration and overhead expenses
Advertising and marketing 1,244 248

Bank fees 1,337 190

Conferences and professional development 64 65

Equipment replacements 659 -

EFTPOS expenses 2,571 42

Insurance 1,700 -

Lease 3,028 -

Printing, stationery, postage, office supplies 923 770

Travel expenses 1,120 176

Uniforms 602 298
Total Hampton Downs i-Site administration and overhead expenses 13,247 1,789

Huntly i-Site cost of goods and services
Accommodation and activities purchases 11,392 20,735

Green Cathedral purchases 87 130

Phone and stamps purchases 1,722 2,858

Stock purchases and packaging 11,562 10,354

Tickets purchases 3,397 2,199
Total Huntly i-Site cost of goods and services 28,159 36,277

Huntly i-Site administration and overhead expenses
Advertising and marketing 511 770

Audit fees 867 1,296

Bank fees 460 737

Conferences and professional development - 878

EFTPOS expenses 1,857 1,935

Equipment replacements - 379

Insurance - 895

Printing, stationery, postage, office supplies 837 2,847

Repairs and maintenance 60 49

Security - 207

Subscriptions and publications 43 1,653

Telephone 1,633 1,640

Travel expenses 182 1,096

Uniforms - 141
Total Huntly i-Site administration and overhead expenses 6,450 14,522

Raglan i-Site cost of goods and services
Accommodation and activities purchases 66,954 80,682

Phone and stamps purchases 1,374 2,278

Museum costs 8,540 10,856

39



Notes to the Performance Report

Performance Report Waikato Enterprise Agency                                                                                                                                                                                                             Page 16 of 20

Stock purchases and packaging 6,025 2,780

Tickets purchases 4,115 22,044
Total Raglan i-Site cost of goods and services 87,007 118,641

Raglan i-Site administration and overhead expenses
Advertising and marketing 390 1,051

Audit fees 867 1,296

Bank fees 2,345 2,451

Conferences and professional development - 1,171

EFTPOS expenses 363 517

Equipment replacements 13 -

Insurance - 895

Printing, stationery, postage, office supplies 2,525 2,733

Repairs and maintenance 22 16

Subscriptions and publications 25 1,762

Telephone - 153

Travel expenses 1,347 357

Uniforms 45 33
Total Raglan i-Site administration and overhead expenses 7,942 12,435

Depreciation
Depreciation 8,018 8,177
Total Depreciation 8,018 8,177

Total Costs related to providing goods or services 249,001 261,637

Grants and donations made
Agency grants, donations, sponsorship 300 8,047
Total Grants and donations made 300 8,047

NOTES 2019 2018

3. Analysis of Assets
Bank accounts and cash

ANZ Main Account (-01) 19,654 23,817

ANZ On Call Account (-02) 23,278 167,471

ANZ Operator Account (-03) 87 (66)

ANZ GST Account (-04) 34 9,133

ANZ Main Account (-05) 8,824 2,321

ANZ Operator Account (-06) 1,248 -

ANZ Term Deposit 102,807 -

Westpac Main Account (-00) 3,268 15,360

Westpac Operator Account (01) 21,448 16,900

Cash Floats 700 1,000

Cash on Hand 1,463 44
Total Bank accounts and cash 182,810 235,979

Debtors and prepayments
Accounts Receivable 10,569 10,029
Total Debtors and prepayments 10,569 10,029
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Inventory
Stock on hand - Hampton Downs 16,891 15,498

Stock on hand - Huntly - 9,209

Stock on hand - Raglan 3,971 7,184
Total Inventory 20,862 31,891

NOTES 2019 2018

4. Analysis of Liabilities
Creditors and accrued expenses

Accounts Payable 10,466 26,052

Visa Card 534 40

GST 9,486 12,644

Income Received In Advance - 1,252
Total Creditors and accrued expenses 20,486 39,989

Other current liabilities
GEM Visa Loan - Current Portion - 979
Total Other current liabilities - 979

NOTES 2019 2018

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Buildings

Buildings and Improvements 4,743 4,743

Accumulated depreciation - buildings and improvements (2,598) (2,386)
Total Buildings 2,145 2,357

Motor Vehicles
Vehicles 35,009 49,427

Accumulated depreciation - vehicles (31,255) (44,455)
Total Motor Vehicles 3,754 4,972

Furniture and Fittings
Furniture and fittings 14,410 9,499

Accumulated depreciation - furniture and fittings (3,831) (2,050)
Total Furniture and Fittings 10,580 7,450

Office Equipment
Office equipment 16,091 16,091

Accumulated depreciation - office equipment (15,193) (15,094)
Total Office Equipment 898 997

Computers and Software
Computers and software 23,466 23,466

Accumulated depreciation - computers and software (19,473) (14,765)
Total Computers and Software 3,993 8,701

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 21,370 24,476
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NOTES 2019 2018

6. Accumulated Funds
Accumulated Funds

Opening Balance 261,058 334,373

Accumulated surpluses or (deficits)
Timing adjustment - 846

Current year earnings (46,283) (74,161)
Total Accumulated surpluses or (deficits) (46,283) (73,315)

Total Accumulated Funds 214,774 261,058

Reserves 7 351 351

Total Accumulated Funds 215,125 261,409

NOTES 2019 2018

7. Breakdown of Reserves
Reserves

Capital gain 351 351
Total Reserves 351 351

A capital gain of $351 was calculated upon disposal of assets during the year ended 30 June 2017. 

8. Commitments

There are no commitments as at 30 June 2019 (Last year - nil).

9. Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

 There are no contingent liabilities or guarantees as at 30 June 2019 (Last year - nil).

10. Related Parties

There were no transactions involving related parties during the financial year. (Last year - nil)

11. Events After the Balance Date

There were no events occurring after 30 June 2019 that would have an effect on the financial position of Waikato Enterprise
Agency. 

Further to the note for the previous year, Waikato Enterprise Agency did renew the contract for the Raglan i-Site during the year
ended 30 June 2019, and the contract continues to 31 March 2020.  The Huntly i-Site was closed in March 2019.  

(Last year - Waikato Enterprise Agency had a contract with the Waikato District Council to operate the i-Sites in Huntly and Raglan. 
An extension to this contract was confirmed by Council on 17 August 2018.  The extended contract expired 31 March 2019.  Waikato
Enterprise Agency did not intend to seek a renewal of the contract.

Both the Raglan and Huntly i-Sites operate as community services, supporting local businesses and community groups through the
promotion and sales of hospitality services, commodities, and event tickets, as well as providing employees with opportunities to
upskill.  Both sites generated losses in the 2017 and 2018 financial years, and therefore Waikato Enterprise Agency will be in a
stronger financial position at the expiry of the contract.)

12. Ability to Continue Operating

The entity will continue to operate for the foreseeable future. 
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13. Correction of Errors

There were no substantial errors requiring correction in the year ended 30 June 2019.  (Last year - nil)
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Auditors' Report
Waikato Enterprise Agency
For the year ended 30 June 2019
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Page 1  Version 2 

Open Meeting 

To Discretionary and Funding Committee 
From Clive Morgan 

General Manager Community Growth 
Date 30 October 2020 

Prepared by  Lianne van den Bemd 
 Community Development Advisor 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference  # GOV0514 / 2930166 
Report Title Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade – Certification 

for Personal Water Craft Training  

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to present an application for funding from Ngaruawahia 
Volunteer Fire Brigade, towards the cost of Certification Training for Personal Water Craft 
Training (Jet Skis) enabling Swift Water Rescue (six people), plus multiple clothing and Water 
Safety Kits. 

2. RECOMMENDATION

THAT the report from the General Manager Community Growth be received; 

AND THAT an allocation of $............................... is made to the Ngaruawahia 
Volunteer Fire Brigade towards the cost of Certification Training for Personal 
Water Craft Training (Jet Skis) enabling Swift Water Rescue (six people), plus 
multiple clothing and Water Safety Kits; 

OR 

AND THAT the request from the Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade towards 
the cost of Certification Training for Personal Water Craft Training (Jet Skis) 
enabling Swift Water Rescue (six people), plus multiple clothing and Water Safety 
Kits is declined / deferred until ……………………. for the following reasons: 

45



Page 2  Version 4.0 

Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade (NVFB) currently consists of 29 members that are 
available 24/7 to provide a wide range of essential services to the community. NVFB joined 
the jet ski response fleet mid-2018, with capacity stretched since then, as only a small number 
of volunteers are currently certified to conduct Swift Water Rescues. 

Services extend throughout the district and along the coastline, with responders having had 
to assist people in the water, vessels sinking and/or demobilised and assist Police and Urban 
Search And Rescue (USAR) with water searches. Equally, responders assist smaller rural 
brigades, with their specialised emergency response functions, for which these brigades are 
not able to undertake. 

Certification Training for PWC (Jet Skis), enabling Swift Water Rescue, does not fall under the 
Fire and Emergency NZ training regime, rather it is provided through Maritime NZ. Training 
includes: reading water flow and current conditions, motor vessel operations training and 
general skipper / motor vessel operational requirements. Additionally, the six learners will 
require multiple clothing and water safety kits. 

4. OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 That the application is approved and an allocation of partial or full funding requested 
by made. 

4.2  That the application is declined. 
4.3  That the application is deferred. 

5. FINANCIAL

Funding is available to allocate for the year. 

The project is noted to cost $9,251.80. NVFB is seeking funding of 9,251.80 towards the cost 
of Certification Training for Personal Water Craft Training (Jet Skis) enabling Swift Water 
Rescue (six people), plus multiple clothing and Water Safety Kits. 

GST Registered Yes 

Set of Accounts supplied No 

Previous funding has been received by this organisation No 

6. POLICY

The application meets the criteria set in the Discretionary Grants Policy, one of which is that 
grants of $5,000.00 can be funded up to 100 percent at the discretion of the relevant 
community board or committee or Council’s Discretionary and Funding Committee. 

For grants above $5,000.00, a funding cap of 75 percent of the total project cost applies and 
other funding needs to be sought. 
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Funds cannot be uplifted until all sufficient funds for the project are approved. 

7. ATTACHMENT

Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade – Certification Training for Personal Water Craft 
Training 
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Discretionary Funding Application Form – V1 20191128 1

DISCRETIONARY FUNDING APPLICATION FORM 

Important notes for applicant: 

Prior to submitting your application, please contact the Waikato District Council’s community development
advisor, on 0800 492 452 Ext 5732, to discuss your application requirements and confirm that
your application meets the eligibility criteria.

Have you discussed your application with the Waikato District Council community development advisor

Yes  No 

Application form must be completed in full and emailed to Funding funding@waidc.govt.nz

Please ensure you have read the Guidelines on Waikato District Council Discretionary Grants Fund prior
to completing the application form (these are updated from time to time).

I have read and understood the guidelines for funding application form

Yes  No 

All parts of the application need to be completed and all supporting information supplied.

PLEASE NOTE: Incomplete applications WILL NOT be considered and will be returned. 
Contact email: (Correspondence will be emailed from funding@waidc.govt.nz ) 

Which of the 2 funds are you applying for: (please tick one appropriate box.) 

1. Discretionary and Funding Committee Project Fund (Rural Ward Areas) Event Fund 

OR

2. Community Board / Committee Discretionary Fund for local Town / Village, Projects / Events

Raglan Taupiri Onewhero Tuakau

Ngaruawahia Huntly Te Kauwhata Meremere

Section 1 – Your details 

1. Name of your organisation and contact person

2. What is your organisation’s purpose/background (who are you? what do you do?)

✔

✔

✔

Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade

Protecting and preserving life, preventing or limiting injury, damage to property land and the environment.
for more information please refer to our cover letter.
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3. Phone number/s

4. Email / Address

5. If you are a Registered Charity (we require your registration number & confirmation that your organization
registration is current)

Section 2 – Your event / project 

1. What is your event / project, including date and location? (please describe in full the project details)

2. How many volunteers and who else is involved in the project?

3. How will the wider community benefit from this event/project?

Are you GST registered? No  Yes  GST Number  / /  _ 

PLEASE NOTE: The following documentationMUST be supplied with your application: 

A copy of the last reviewed or audited accounts (whichever applies) for your organisation/group/club
A copy of any documentation verifying your organisation’s legal status
Include copies of written quotes (these must match the Funding Requirements in section 4.)

Section 3 – Funding requirements 

1. NOTE: Please provide full details for the following:
How much your event/project will cost,
How much you are seeking from the Waikato District Council,
How much you are seeking from other providers,
Details of other funding and donated materials/resources being sourced, and
Current funds in hand to cover the costs of the event/project.

IMPORTANT: Please ensure all quotes supplied are clearly itemised and match the “Project Breakdown” (Total B) 

Lorraine.Dunmall@fireandemergency.nz 

CC32595

Additional water safety & motor vessel operators to increase the number of volunteers able to respond water 
emergencies.

 twenty nine and two pending 

A greater water response and service appropriate to the greater area from port Waikato to Karapiro and the network of 
rivers and streams throughout the greater Waikato area.

✔ 01091957
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Please complete all of the following sections GST Inclusive Costs  
(use this column if you 
are NOT GST registered) 

GST Exclusive Costs 
(use this column if you 
are GST registered) 

What is the total cost of your project/event $ $ 

Existing funds available for the project.  Include any 
projected income i.e. ticket sales, merchandise etc. 

    Total A $ $ 

2. Only include the Funding being sought from Waikato District Council below:

Project Breakdown (itemised costs of funding being sought) GST Inclusive Costs  
(use this column if you 
are NOT GST registered) 

GST Exclusive Costs 
(use this column if you 
are GST registered) 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

Total Funds being sought from WDC  Total B  $ $ 

3. Has / will funding been sought from other funders? Yes No  

If ‘Yes’, please list the funding organisation(s) and the amount of funding sought 

a) $ $ 

b) $ $ 

c) $ $ 

d) $ $ 

Total of other funds being sought   Total C $ $ 

4. Describe any donated material / resources provided for the event/project:

9,251.80

4,200.00

4,166.90

884.90

Training 

Multiple Clothing items 6xpsn (as per quote)

Water safety kit

9,251.80

✔

N/A
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Section 4 – Community wellbeing and outcomes 

1. Which community wellbeing will your project contribute to?
(See the guidelines sheet for more information on this section).

Social Economic Cultural Environmental

2. Which of the five community outcomes for the Waikato district does this project contribute to?
(See the guidelines sheet for more information on this section).

Accessible  Safe  Sustainable Healthy Vibrant

Section 5 – Previous Funding Received from Waikato District Council 

1. If you have received funding from or through the Waikato District Council for any project/event in
the past two years, please list below:

What Board / Committee Type of Project / Event Date received Amount 

2. Please  confirm  that  a  ‘Funding  Project  Accountability’  form  has  been  completed  and
returned  to Waikato District Council for the funds listed above.

NOTE: This will be checked and confirmed by council staff.

I confirm that an accountability statement has been completed and returned for previous funding received.

 Name: Date:

I certify that the funding information provided in this application is correct. 

 Name: Date:

Position in organisation (tick which applies) Chairman  Secretary  Treasurer 

Signature: Date:

*Incomplete applications will not be accepted and will be returned

✔

✔ ✔

02/10/2020

02/10/2020
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Introduction to the Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade 

The Fire and Emergency New Zealand Act 2017 combined urban and rural fire services into a single, 
integrated fire and emergency services organisation – Fire and Emergency NZ (FENZ), with a mandate 
to provide a wide range of services for communities.  The principle objectives of FENZ are: 

Reducing the incidence of unwanted fires and the associated risk to life and property, and
Protecting and preserving life, and preventing or limiting injury, damage to property, land and
the environment.

As well as the above principle, the Act includes the following additional functions we may do if we 
have capability and capacity, and provided this does not affect our ability to carry out our main 
functions. 
Responding to: 

medical emergencies
maritime incidents
weather events, natural hazard events and disasters
incidents where substances present a risk to people, property or the environment
Promoting safe handling, labelling, signage, storage and transportation of hazardous
substances.
Performing other rescues.
Providing assistance at transport incidents.
any other situation where we can assist.

The Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade currently has 29 active members and responds to in excess 
of 200 calls a year.  This year to date (January to October we have already responded to 264 calls.)  
These calls range from backyard, scrub, forest and structure/dwelling fires, to motor vehicle accidents, 
cardiac arrests (and other medical assist for ambulance), trees down and flooding and supporting the 
other brigades and communities throughout the entire region two. (greater Waikato).  We are all 
volunteers and we are available 24 hours a day, seven days a week.   

The Ngaruawahia VFB Jetski has been responding to incidents on water since it joined the response 
fleet in mid-2018.  These have ranged from people in the water, vessels sinking and/or demobilised 
and assisting NZ Police and USAR with water searches.  

We have a wide region to cover that has a number of large and small rivers and streams, lakes 
and coastlines that the Jetski and NVFB covers, assisting the smaller rural brigades with the 
more specialised emergency response functions that the rural brigades are not able to undertake. 

Training to be able to response on the water does not fall under FENZ training regime, rather it is part 
of Maritime NZ.  We have found that our small pool of volunteers that are appropriately trained to 
operate and assist on the water is being stretched and we need to increase our response numbers to 
better spread the load.   

The training required to respond on the water is Swift Water Rescue, reading water flow and current 
conditions, motor vessel operations training, and general skipper/motor vessel operational 
requirements.  These courses are only run by xxxx 

There are also the additional requirements needed by our members, including appropriate type of 
clothing needed for these calls, and additional water safety kits.   
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The type of clothing required for these rescues are cold water suits from xxx.  These are specifically 
needed to protect those on the water from hypothermia to allow them to spend the time needed to 
perform the water rescues.  

The water safety kits include life jackets and helmets for those support crew assisting the Jetski 
operators from the shoreline.  One additional water safety kit would be of huge benefit to the brigade. 

All of these items are of huge benefit to the brigade and would allow us to continue to look after our 
communities around the water bodies of the Waikato region. 

We thank you for your support and assistance in helping us achieving these goals and upgrading our 
equipment portfolio with these valuable resources, which continues to allow us to help our immediate 
and wider communities. 
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RE: Water Safety quote kit received on Wed 4/11/2020 1:28 pm 
 
Hi Lorraine 
  
The cost for a 2-person water safety kits is $1017.64. I am waiting on a updated and confirmed 
quote from supplier and will forward when received 
  
  
Regards  

B. A. Nilson 
 
Bruce Nilson 
Equipment Coordinator – )
Organisational Strategy & Capability Development Branch 
 

M: 027 801 4221 
Bruce.nilson@fireandemergency.nz 
www.fireandemergency.nz 
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GST # 103181291

Marine Deals Ltd.
410 Rosebank Rd
Avondale
Auckland 1025

Quote #: 000001689
Quoter: Rudee Lim

Quote Date: 5/11/2020
Quote Expiry Date: 11/11/2020

QUOTATION FOR:

lorraine Dunmall
Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade
n/r
n/r, n/r, Auckland, n/r
New Zealand
T: 027-5036749

lorraine Dunmall
Ngaruawahia Volunteer Fire Brigade
n/r
n/r, n/r, Auckland, n/r
New Zealand
T: 027-5036749

QTY Product Name SKU Why Pay Unit Price Subtotal

Aropec AquaThermal Pants M PT-5K48M-AT-M $199.00 $199.00 $199.001
Aropec AquaThermal Pants L PT-5K48M-AT-L $199.00 $199.00 $199.001
Aropec AquaThermal Pants XL PT-5K48M-AT-XL $199.00 $199.00 $796.004
Aropec Aircraft Carrier 5mm Neoprene
Zipper Dive Boots US9

BT-97A72-BK-9 $119.00 $119.00 $119.001

Aropec Aircraft Carrier 5mm Neoprene
Zipper Dive Boots US10

BT-97A72-BK-10 $119.00 $119.00 $119.001

Aropec Aircraft Carrier 5mm Neoprene
Zipper Dive Boots US11

BT-97A72-BK-11 $119.00 $119.00 $357.003

Aropec Aircraft Carrier 5mm Neoprene
Zipper Dive Boots US12

BT-97A72-BK-12 $119.00 $119.00 $119.001

Musto Essential Sailing Long Finger
Gloves Black L

80101-AUGL002BL $59.99 $59.99 $59.991

Musto Essential Sailing Long Finger
Gloves Black M

80101-AUGL002BM $59.99 $59.99 $119.982

Musto Essential Sailing Long Finger
Gloves Black XL

80101-AUGL002BX
L

$59.99 $59.99 $179.973

Musto BR1 Inshore Jacket Black 2XL SMJK056B2XL $449.95 $449.00 $1,796.004
Musto BR1 Inshore Jacket Black L SMJK056BL $449.95 $409.00 $409.001
Musto BR1 Inshore Jacket Black XL SMJK056BXL $449.95 $319.00 $319.001

Subtotal incl GST: $4,791.94
Grand Total: $4,791.94

(Total includes GST. GST Content:$625.04)

This quote is subject to availability. No rain checks. No substitutions
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Open Meeting 
 

To Discretionary and Funding Committee 
From Clive Morgan 

General Manager Community Growth 
Date 28 October 2020 

Prepared by  Lianne van den Bemd 
  Community Development Advisor 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference  # GOV0514 / 2925430 
Report Title Pukemokemoke Bush Trust - Extending the existing 

car park boundary 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present an application for funding from the Pukemokemoke 
Bush Trust (Trust) towards the cost of extending the existing car park boundary. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the report from the General Manager Community Growth be received; 
 
AND THAT an allocation of $............................... is made to the Pukemokemoke 
Bush Trust towards the cost of extending the existing car park boundary; 
 
OR 
 
AND THAT the request from the Pukemokemoke Bush Trust towards the cost 
of extending the existing car park boundary is declined / deferred until 
……………………. for the following reasons: 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
Pukemokemoke Bush Trust administrates a 40-hectare bush reserve open to the public as a 
walkway and educational environmental outdoor learning centre. 
 
The current car park area has become a health and safety risk, as there is now limited spaces 
available to park during peak times ie on weekends and public holidays. 
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The Trust has been gifted a neighbouring parcel of land to extend the current car park area 
and are seeking a grant towards the costs associated with Council’s resource consenting and 
certification fees. 
 
The following companies are involved in this project: 

• CKL Surveyors Ltd 
• Fulton Hogan – Development of the site 
• Allen Needham Solicitors 
• Waikato District Council. 

 
Allen Needham Solicitors have indicated to discount their fees under their social CapEx model. 

4. OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 That the application is approved and an allocation of partial or full funding requested 

by made. 
4.2  That the application is declined. 
4.3  That the application is deferred. 

5. FINANCIAL 
 
Funding is available to allocate for the year. 
 
The project is noted to cost $40,000.00. Pukemokemoke Bush Trust is seeking funding of 
$7,187.00 towards the cost of extending the existing car park boundary. 

GST Registered No 

Set of Accounts supplied Yes 

Previous funding has been received by this organisation Yes 

6. POLICY 
 

The application meets the criteria set in the Discretionary Grants Policy, one of which is that 
grants of $5,000.00 can be funded up to 100 percent at the discretion of the relevant 
community board or committee or Council’s Discretionary and Funding Committee. 

For grants above $5,000.00, a funding cap of 75 percent of the total project cost applies and 
other funding needs to be sought. 

Funds cannot be uplifted until all sufficient funds for the project are approved. 
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7. ATTACHMENT 
 
Pukemokemoke Bush Trust - Extending the existing car park boundary 
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Further to the above, I would like to add the following. 
This complete project has no quotes because of the nature of it. It has many elements to the 
costings because of the unknown variables around time, and the conditions WDC will require, to 
facilitate transfer of title. So, the only basis we can work on are those estimates that CKL have 
included in their estimation of costs, and our own estimations as to solicitors’ fees and the 
contracting work around establishing the surface of the carpark.  
The total cost of the project as stipulated in the application is $40000 made up of the following. 
Surveying fees $18000 
Council fees  $ 7500 
Linz  $ 1000 
Solicitor  $ 2500 
Development  $ 11000 
 $40000  
   
Existing Funds of $15000 are those that we have obtained from WEL ENERGY TRUST for this project. 
 
As I have said in the application, those businesses involved in the project have indicated a willingness 
to discount their fees, so David Johnstone Pukemokemoke Bush Trustees believe that with the 
goodwill of all parties involved, this will enable the DJPBT to reduce the cost of the total project. 
However, that been said, the DJPBT has other funds that could be made available but would put 
other projects on hold that have been funded by other grants. This would mean we would have to 
go back to those that have funded targeted projects and ask for their permission to rechanneled 
their contribution, which they may not agree to. 
 
David Johnstone Pukemokemoke Bush Trust has been greatly supported by WDC over many years 
and respectfully ask that you will continue with that support through a positive answer to our 
application.   
 
Thanking you 
Regards 
Kevin Swney (secretary/treasurer) 
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Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Audit Limited, incorporating the audit practices of Christchurch, Hawkes Bay, Taranaki, Tauranga, Waikato and Wellington. 
 
Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Audit Limited is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Limited, the members of which are separate and 
independent legal entities. 

Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Audit Limited 
Level 4, 354 Victoria Street 
PO Box 9159, Hamilton 3240 
New Zealand 

T:  +64 7 834 6800 
F:  +64 7 838 2881 
E:  waikato@bakertillysr.nz 
W: www.bakertillysr.nz 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Trustees of David Johnstone Pukemokemoke Bush Trust 
Report on the Audit of the Performance Report 

 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the performance report of David Johnstone Pukemokemoke Bush Trust ('the Trust') on pages 

2 to 10, which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the entity information, 

the statement of service performance, statement of financial performance and statement of cash flows for the 

year then ended, and the statement of accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our 

report, the reported outcomes and outputs, and quantification of the outputs to the extent practicable, in the 

statement of service performance are suitable, and the accompanying performance report presents fairly, in all 

material respects, the entity information and the service performance for the year ended 31 March 2020, the 

financial position of the Trust as at 31 March 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the 

year then ended in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting – Accrual (Not-for-Profit) 

('PBE SFR-A (NFP)').  

 

Our report is made solely to the Trustees of the Trust. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 

state to the Trustees of the Trust those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for 

no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 

other than the Trustees of the Trust as a body, for our audit work, for our report or for the opinions we have 

formed. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The performance report of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2019 was not audited, therefore we have 

been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the statements were free of material 

misstatement. While we have satisfied ourselves regarding the material accuracy of the statement of financial 

position as at 31 March 2020, as we have not audited the comparative figures, any misstatements in the 

opening balances resulting from the prior year would have a corresponding effect on the statement of financial 

position as at 31 March 2020. 

 

We conducted our audit of the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance, statement 

of cash flows, statement of accounting policies and notes to the performance report in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) ('ISAs (NZ)'), and the audit of the entity information and 

statement of service performance in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 
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(New Zealand) ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 

the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Performance Report section of our report. We are independent 

of the Trust in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) International Code of Ethics for 

Assurance Practitioners (including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the New 

Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘IESBA Code’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

 

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, David Johnstone 

Pukemokemoke Bush Trust.   

 

Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Performance Report 

The Trustees are responsible for: 

 Identifying outcomes and outputs, and quantifying the outputs to the extent practicable, that are relevant, 

reliable, comparable and understandable, to report in the statement of service performance;  

 The preparation and fair presentation of the performance report on behalf of the Trust, which comprises 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the entity information, the statement of service 

performance, statement of financial performance and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

and the statement of accounting policies and other explanatory information, in accordance with PBE SFR-

A (NFP), and 

 Such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the performance 

report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the performance report, the Trustees are responsible on behalf of the Trust for assessing the 

Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease 

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Performance Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance report as a whole is free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (NZ) and ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 

of this performance report. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ) and ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), we exercise professional 

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the performance report, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Trust’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Trustees and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the performance report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the performance report, including the 

disclosures, and whether the performance report represents fairly the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Perform procedures to obtain evidence about and evaluate whether the reported outcomes and outputs, 

and quantification of the outputs to the extent practicable, are relevant, reliable, comparable and 

understandable.  

 

We communicate with the Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 

our audit. 

 

 

 

 

BAKER TILLY STAPLES RODWAY AUDIT LIMITED  

Hamilton, New Zealand 

12 August 2020 
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Open Meeting 
 

To Discretionary and Funding Committee 
From Clive Morgan 

General Manager Community Growth 
Date 28 October 2020 

Prepared by  Lianne van den Bemd 
  Community Development Advisor 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference  # GOV0514 / 2925429 
Report Title Puketaha School - Cricket batting area upgrade 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present an application for funding from Puketaha School 
towards the cost of a cricket batting area upgrade, that includes new nets and artificial turf. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the report from the General Manager Community Growth be received; 
 
AND THAT an allocation of $............................... is made to the Puketaha School 
towards the cost of a cricket batting area upgrade, that includes new nets and 
artificial turf; 
 
OR 
 
AND THAT the request from the Puketaha School towards the cost of a cricket 
batting area upgrade, that includes new nets and artificial turf is declined / 
deferred until ……………………. for the following reasons: 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
The cricket playing area at Puketaha School is open and accessible to the wider community 
and local cricket clubs from surrounding areas, after school, during weekends and public 
holidays. 
 
Volunteers include 20 members of the PTA (Parent-Teacher Association) and 360 school 
parents who have actively raised and supported the fundraising for this project over the past 
year. 

102



Page 2  Version 4.0 

4. OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 That the application is approved and an allocation of partial or full funding requested 

by made. 
4.2  That the application is declined. 
4.3  That the application is deferred. 

5. FINANCIAL 
 
Funding is available to allocate for the year. 
 
The project is noted to cost $25,245.00. Puketaha School is seeking funding of $5,250.00 
towards the cost of a cricket batting area upgrade, that includes nets and artificial turf. 

GST Registered Yes 

Set of Accounts supplied Yes 

Previous funding has been received by this organisation in the past two 
years 

No 

6. POLICY 
 

The application meets the criteria set in the Discretionary Grants Policy, one of which is that 
grants of $5,000.00 can be funded up to 100 percent at the discretion of the relevant 
community board or committee or Council’s Discretionary and Funding Committee. 

For grants above $5,000.00, a funding cap of 75 percent of the total project cost applies and 
other funding needs to be sought. 

Funds cannot be uplifted until all sufficient funds for the project are approved. 

7. ATTACHMENT 
 
Puketaha School - Cricket batting area upgrade 
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17 June 2020 
 
Geoff Booth 
Puketaha School 
395 Puketaha Rd 
RD1 
Hamilton 
 
Dear Geoff, 
 
Thank you for giving Teamturf the opportunity to quote on the new cricket nets at Puketaha School. 
 
The total dimensions of the two batting cages are each 12m x 7.3m, totaling 87.6qm.  A batting strip 
12m x 1.83m is installed in each batting cage.   
 
Batting area concrete base     $8,250.00 + GST 
Excavate and lay 50mm base, box and mesh with 668 mesh. Supply and lay 20 mpa, 100mm 
thick concrete slab 7.3m x 12m and expansion cut.  Clean up and fill edges with top soil and 
grass seed. 
 
Batting area- Shield surface(12m x 3.66m, 43.92qm)  $2,820 + GST 
A 10mm cricket surface manufactured using straight pile polypropylene yarn, designed for high 
intensity use at all levels. This surface provides a grass surface with consistent pace and bounce. 
 
Batting area Nets      $12,850.00 + GST 

 To supply and install 43.3lineal meters of 2.8metre high chain link fence 
 End posts 50nb medium galv pipe   
 Intermediate posts 40nb medium galv pipe  
 Top rail, middle and bottom 40nb medium galv pipe  
 Chain link 50 x 50 x 3.15 x 2.8metre high   
 Chain link to cover7.3 x 6 metres over roof  
 Line wire 4 x strands 2.5 ht   

 
TOTAL COST OF BATTING CAGES 
Batting area concrete base    $8,250 + GST 
Batting surface     $2,820 + GST 
Batting area nets   $12,850 + GST 
TOTAL      $23,920 + GST 
 
The dimensions of the Bowler’s run up area are 6m x 7.3m, totaling 44qm.   
    
Bowler’s run-ups- Base preparation (44 sqm)   $3,280 + GST 
Ground preparation including excavation and removal of 125mm of topsoil and supply and 
installation of 100mm GAP20 basecourse, levelled and compacted. 
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Bowler’s run-ups - Satellite surface (44 sqm)   $4,400 + GST 
19mm sand filled multi-use turf for the bowler’s run-up impact area. 
 
23mm Proplay Shockpad- 6m x 7.3m – 44 sqm  $1,950 + GST 
23mm shockpad to reduce the load on players joints through the high impact zone when bowling.  
 
Teamturf Surfacing - – click here  http://www.teamturf.co.nz/sports/  to view these product 
swatches. 
 
TOTAL COST OF RUN UP AREA   
Base Construction     $3,280 + GST 
Satellite Turf      $4,400 + GST 
23mm Proplay Shockpad    $1,950 + GST 
TOTAL       $9,630 + GST 
 
TOTAL PROJECT COST 
Batting nets and surface  $23,920 + GST 
Bowlers run up area     $9,630 + GST 
TOTAL     $33,550 + GST 
  
The price above includes the following: 

1. Freight of the selected surface to site 
2. Installation of the new surface by our experienced installers 
3. Site tidy up 

 
NB- Teamturf take no responsibility for damage to existing driveways and footpaths due to 
construction traffic. We will take all care to minimise damage but we cannot be responsible for 
damage to poorly constructed or old concrete/asphalt areas. 
 
Benefits of using teamturf surfacing: 
 Optimum impact absorption  
 Durable 
 Easy and quick installation 
 Range of colours available 
 Improved surface feel under foot 
 No freezing or icing over surface 
 Consistent performance all year round 
 Quality controlled factory production 
 Low maintenance 

 
Guarantee 
T.E.A.M Sports Surfaces provides a guarantee on the surface for 8 years against any premature 
breakdown of the yarn due to ultraviolet rays. T.E.A.M Sports surfaces will guarantee the surface 
joins/seams and all installation workmanship for a period of 24 months following completion of the 
installation. 
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Health and Safety 
In March 2018,  Teamturf was certified and approved to category 3 Pre-Qualification 
for Auckland Council Health and Safety Standards. This is an extremely comprehensive 
process showing Teamturf has achieved the highest level of system implementation 

when it comes to the safety of our own staff, sub-contractors and the general public around our 
worksites.      
 
 
Payment Terms: 
• 40% on signing of the contract 
• 60% on completion of the installation 
 
This quote is valid for 60 days from the above date and is in accordance with the Construction 
Contracts Act 2002. 
 
Company Profile 
Teamturf was established in 2006 offering a range of very high quality Australian and European 
manufactured products to the New Zealand sporting industry. These surfaces are manufactured 
using the highest quality raw materials sourced from Germany, Holland and Switzerland. Teamturf 
Ltd is 50% New Zealand owned and operated and sources a range of internationally approved 
running track surfaces and synthetic turf products for athletics, soccer, rugby, tennis, hockey, school 
multi-use, cricket, playgrounds and landscaping. Our current product range includes surfaces with 
the following international body certification: FIFA, IAAF, World Rugby, International tennis 
federation, Federation of International Hockey, Federation of International Basketball and Cricket 
Australia. 
 
Teamturf has a very experienced installation team who are full time employees of the company. 
They are all skilled in the installation of all products and surfaces and we offer a 2 year warranty on 
all our installation workmanship. Our installation team are experienced in all areas and projects of all 
sizes, ranging from small cricket wickets to a 17,000sqm soccer facility in Auckland.  
 
Phil Lewis is the managing director of the Teamturf head office in Auckland and has extensive 
industry knowledge having been in the artificial turf industry since 2002. Phil has been involved in 
small local projects through to large sports facility construction throughout Asia and the South 
Pacific. From initial design concept through to hands on site installation, Phil has extensive technical 
knowledge in all areas. 
 
Any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind regards 
Teamturf 

 

Keith Ratcliffe 
Business Development Manager 
027 291 1122 
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PO Box 4174, Hamilton East, Hamilton 3247 
www.hamiltoncricket.co.nz  

 

25 November 2019  

 

To whom it my concern  

 
I am writing in support of Puketaha School’s application for funding towards installing cricket nets at 
the school.  Cricket nets provide a venue for learning & refining essential skills and can be done both 
on an individual basis and as part of a team practice.  The school has its own school cricket teams and 
we also have children from Puketaha who play at club level. 

The school has a cricket wicket and frequently allows us to use the pitch and their facilities as part of 
our weekly rounds as well as for trainings. The association has a good relationship with the school and 
are looking to continue this into the future, especially as the population of Hamilton’s North East 
continues to grow. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.  
 

Yours faithfully 

 

Janice Fraser 
Pathway Manager   
Hamilton Cricket  
Ph: 022 0611 660  

HHAAMILTON CCRRICKET AASSSOCIATION
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Crowe New Zealand Audit 
Partnership 

Audit and Assurance Service 

Level 3, Bridgewater Building 
130 Grantham St 
Hamilton 3204 
PO Box 24009 
Abels Hamilton 3253 
New Zealand 
Tel  +64 7 838 2180 
Fax +64 7 838 2181 
www.crowe.nz 

 

The title ‘Partner’ conveys that the person is a senior member within their respective division, and is among the group of persons who hold an equity 
interest (shareholder) in its parent entity, Findex Group Limited. The only professional service offering which is conducted by a partnership is the 
Crowe Australasia external audit division.  All other professional services offered by Findex Group Limited are conducted by a privately owned 
organisation and/or its subsidiaries.  
 

Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd, trading as Crowe Australasia is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a separate 
and independent legal entity. Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd and its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any 
other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not have an ownership or partnership interest 
in Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. 
Services are provided by Crowe New Zealand Audit Partnership an affiliate of Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. 
© 2019 Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO THE READERS OF PUKETAHA SCHOOL’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Puketaha School (the School). The Auditor-General has appointed 
me, Paul Lawrence, using the staff and resources of Crowe New Zealand Audit Partnership, to carry 
out the audit of the financial statements of the School on his behalf. 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the School on pages 2 to 19, that comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, 
statement of changes in net assets/equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, 
and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements of the School:  
 
 present fairly, in all material respects:  

o its financial position as at 31 December 2019; and 
o its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

 
 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with Public 

Sector Public Benefit Entity Standards, Reduced Disclosure Regime 
 
Our audit was completed on 27 May 2020. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 
 
The basis for our opinion is explained below and we draw your attention to other matters. In addition, 
we outline the responsibilities of the Board of Trustees and our responsibilities relating to the financial 
statements, we comment on other information, and we explain our independence. 
 
 
Emphasis of Matter – COVID-19 
 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the disclosures in note 26 on page 19 which outline 
the possible effects of the Alert Level 4 lockdown as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
 
Basis for our opinion 
 
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New 
Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report. 
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We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees for the financial statements  

The Board of Trustees is responsible on behalf of the School for preparing financial statements that are 
fairly presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The 
Board of Trustees is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to 
prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible on behalf of the School for 
assessing the School’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board of Trustees is also responsible 
for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting, unless there is an intention to close or merge the School, or there is no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The Board of Trustees’ responsibilities arise from the Education Act 1989. 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in 
accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise 
from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were limited to checking 
that the information agreed to the School’s approved budget. 

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also: 

 We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

 We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees. 
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 We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the 
Board of Trustees and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the School to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 We assess the risk of material misstatement arising from the Novopay payroll system, which 
may still contain errors. As a result, we carried out procedures to minimise the risk of material 
errors arising from the system that, in our judgement, would likely influence readers’ overall 
understanding of the financial statements. 

We communicate with the Board of Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.  

Our responsibilities arises from the Public Audit Act 2001. 

Other information 

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Board of Trustees Listing, Kiwisport Note, and Analysis of Variance Reporting, but does not include the 
financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Independence 

We are independent of the School in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-
General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and 
Ethical Standard 1: International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the School. 

Paul Lawrence 
Crowe New Zealand Audit Partnership 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Hamilton New Zealand 
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School 
Name​: Puketaha School School Number ​: 1907 

Strategic 
Aim​: 

1. Ensure all students experience a ​rich, future focussed learning programme ​that is ​personalised​, putting children,
their interests, aspirations and needs first.

2. Ensure that all students are ​progressing​ and ​achieving​ their potential in relation to the ​NZ Curriculum​.

Annual 
Aim​: 1.1: ​Learning to Learn-To build the confidence and capacity of all our learners.  

1.3: ​Teaching and Learning Strategies​-​To further develop practice that gradually moves the learner to be 
self-determining. 
2.1:  ​To ensure children are experiencing a broad and rich learning programme which integrates all areas of the New 
Zealand Curriculum.  
2.2: ​To improve the number of students achieving and progressing within the NZ English Curriculum. 
2.3:  ​To improve the number of students achieving and progressing within the NZ Mathematics Curriculum. 
2.4: ​ To further investigate and integrate authentic ways to embrace the teaching of Maaori Students in our Rich 
Curriculum.  
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Target​: 
Personalising Learning Target Reading Targets Writing Targets Mathematics Targets 

The “Self Determined Learner“ profile will 

be evident in teaching and learning across 

Year 2-8.  

Children will be able to talk about the 

Learning Process and begin to direct this 

process more themselves.  

Children can verbalise what it means to be 

‘in the learning pit’ and celebrate this as 

part of learning. 

Clear evidence of the range of Co 

Teaching Models being used across our 

school in a planned and deliberate way. 

Learning through play is an integral 

element to the Year 1 and 2 programme 

design. With an obvious progression from 

Year 1 to Year 2.   

To have all students engaged in a rich and 

broad learning programme with the 

Global Concept as a common thread. 

Learning programmes and environments 

will showcase clear evidence of the 

language, culture and identity of our 

learners (Whanaungatanga). 

Maaori language is evident around the 

school. 

All ​Year 8’s ​ to be achieving at or above 

Level 3 of the NZC in Reading by the end 

of the Year.  

There is no disparity between Maaori 

Student Progress and Achievement, and 

all other students. 

All ​Year 8’s ​ to be achieving at or above 

Level 3 of the NZC in Writing by the end 

of the Year.  

75%​ Year 7 ​ achieving Early Level 4 

within the NZ Curriculum for Writing 

(higher end of the expectations).  

85%  of​ Year 2 ​ achieving Level 1 within 

the NZ Curriculum for Writing. 

There is no disparity between Maaori 

Student Progress and Achievement, and 

all other students. 

All ​Year 8’s ​ to be achieving Level 3 

or above within the NZC for 

Mathematics by the end of the 

year.  

75% ​Year 7 ​students achieving 

Early  Level 4  within the NZ 

Curriculum in Mathematics.  

85% ​Year 4 s ​tudents achieving 

Level 2 within the NZ Curriculum in 

Mathematics.  

There is no disparity between 

Maaori Student Progress and 

Achievement, and all other 

students. 
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Baseline 
Data​:  

 

 

 

Percentages of students working at or above the New Zealand Curriculum Standards.  

Personalising Learning 2018 Reading Data 2018 Writing Data 2018 Mathematics Data 2018 

Student voice was gathered from around 

the school which evidenced that children 

could not yet talk about the Learning 

Process or what it means to be a Self- 

Determined Learner.  

 

Teachers in 2018 were not yet able to 

confidently talk about the Co-teaching 

models and how they could be utilized. 

There was an imbalance of approaches 

used.  

 

Children who have been taught about “The 

Learning Pit’ seem to be developing a more 

positive attitude towards learning and 

being comfortable with confusion. This 

learning is worthwhile spreading across 

the school.  

 

Students are benefitting from being 

engaged in a rich and broad learning 

programme with the Global Concept as a 

common thread-  allowing for natural 

Curriculum Integration. 

 

Some learning programmes and 

environments are showcasing clear 

evidence of the language, culture and 

identity of our learners (Whanaungatanga) 

 

Maaori language is evident in some areas 

of the school. 

Year 7- ​100% of students are 
achieving at or above.  
 
Maaori-​ 100% of students are 
achieving at or above 

Year 7- ​84% are achieving at or above.  
 
Year 6- ​100% are achieving at or 
above. 64% of these students are 
achieving particularly well, being at 
Level 3 and above. 
 
Year 1- ​ 86% are achieving at or above. 
 
Maaori-​ 100% of students are 
achieving at or above 

Year 7- ​91% are achieving at or 
above. 
 
Year 6- ​100% are achieving at or 
above. 64% are achieving 
particularly well, being Level 3 and 
above.  
 
Year 3- ​98% are achieving at or 
above. 32% are achieving Early Level 
2 and 48% at Level 2.  
 
Maaori-​ 100% of students are 
achieving at or above 
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Actions 
What did we do? 

Outcomes  
What happened? 

Reasons for the variance  
Why did it happen? 

Evaluation  
Where to next? 

Ensure all students experience a ​rich, future 
focussed learning programme ​that is 
personalised​, putting children, their interests, 
aspirations and needs first.  
1.1: ​Learning to Learn-To build the confidence 
and capacity of all our learners.  
Professional Learning ​focused on ​Learning to Learn 

strategies to build teachers capability to equip learners 

with the confidence, skills, attitudes, knowledge and values 

to manage their own learning with increasingly less 

dependence on the teacher. Professional Learning 

sessions, Syndicate Meetings, TAI’s and ongoing learning 

conversations in collaborative teaching teams will support 

and challenge teachers to review current practice and 

continue to build on teaching practice that moves the 

children towards being more independent lifelong 

learners, where learning will continue without the teacher. 

 

● Continued to bring the 6 C’s to the forefront 

of Learning 

 

● Developed our “Self Determined Learning” 

and “Agency” across the school 

 

● Developed the Puketaha School Learning 

Model to help teach children how to learn.  

 

● Taught children specific thinking and 

learning strategies 

 

● Developed a ‘Growth Mindset’ Learning 

Culture.  
 

Target- The “Self Determined Learner“ profile will be 

evident in teaching and learning across Year 2-8.  

 

This infographic is evident in all learning spaces Year 2-8. The 

senior learning environments have it more embedded into 

practice while the junior and middle learning environments 

touch on it.  

 

Target- Children will be able to talk about the Learning 

Process and begin to direct this process more themselves.  
 
The 6 C’s are more visible in our learning programmes, in particular 
with the senior learning environments.  
 
The Puketaha Learning Model and Self- Determined Learner profile 
are now created as visual graphic posters and are displayed 
throughout the school and within the learning resources the 
teachers design.  
 
Students are using the language of the Learning Model and the Self- 
Determined Learner profile. It is becoming embedded in some 
aspects of the learning programmes, in particular Years 5-8. The 
children are demonstrating greater confidence when leading their 
own learning. There are also high levels of engagement.  
 
Teachers are beginning to be increasingly more deliberate when 
teaching skills for learning, based on the Learning Model as well as 
developing the behaviours for Self Determined Learning.  
 
Target- Children can verbalise what it means to be ‘in the 
learning pit’ and celebrate this as part of learning. 
 
Growth Mindset has become embedded in the everyday learning 
language, in particular from Year 3- 6. There is evidence within 
learning programmes of these attitudes and skills being deliberately 

Self- Determined 
Learning Profile- ​We 
achieved the outcome 
by making the 
infographic up and 
having teacher by in 
for what this might 
look like. We 
prototyped it and 
adjusted it over the 
year.  We also made it 
very easy for teachers 
to access so it could be 
displayed and used in 
planning with ease. 
 

Learning Process- 
Having this as an 
infographic which is 
easily accessible again 
helped support 
teachers to use it 
within their 
programme design. 
Making the learning 
visible. 

Learning Pit- ​Teachers 
felt passionately about 
this and shared their 
passion with each 
other as well as their 
deliberate teaching 

Continue to self- 
review and grow 
this within the 
school. Use 
teachers who have 
been ‘early 
adopters’ to share 
their resources and 
ideas with other 
staff members to 
help it become 
more obvious 
within the middle 
and junior learning 
environments. 
Make the most of 
PLD as it arises.  
 
Continue to self- 
review and build on 
this and use 
teachers who are 
feeling confident to 
lead some further 
initiatives. One of 
the teachers has 
developed learning 
maps which are a 
great resource. In 
syndicate meetings, 
discuss and share 
how the Learning 
Process might look 
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1.3: ​Teaching and Learning Strategies​-​To further 
develop practice that gradually moves the 
learner to be self-determining. 
 
Professional Learning ​ - focused on engaging and stretching 

learners through the deliberate use of  ​Teaching and 

Learning Strategies and approaches.​ Professional Learning 

sessions, Syndicate Meetings and TAI’s supported and 

challenged teachers to design programmes that guide 

students to be insightful, responsible and constructive 

about theirs and others learning. Teachers reviewed their 

current practice in order to evaluate their impact on 

student learning through the following: 

● Establishing appropriate procedures and 

routines. 

 

● Actively engage and stretch all students through 

the use of a variety of teaching approaches and 

strategies, choosing a range of resources and 

materials/equipment. 

 

● Accommodate different paces and styles of 

learning. 

 

● Use groupings strategically. 

 

● Set students up for successful cooperative group 

work. 

 

● Using the Co-teaching Models to enable our 

teachers to work collectively and collaboratively 

to create multiple options for the organisation 

of learning. 

 

● Purposeful design of Spaces for Learning to 

ensure the space supports the type of learning 

required.  

 

● Learning through play to enable our children in 

Roopu Kaakano to lead their own learning, 

developing empathy,  sense of belonging and a 

connection to the outside world, through a 

taught and valued. Displays support this as well as the attitudes 
towards learning children are demonstrating.  
 
 
Teachers all engaged in Collaborative TAI’s and were able to 
evidence and discuss the professional learning that took place as 
well as the benefits to the learners they were targeting. The school 
valued this process by dedicating syndicate meetings to this 
process.  
 
Teachers planning illustrate daily use of a range of teaching and 
learning strategies to engage learners as well as scaffold and 
extend learning appropriately. Learning progressions are often 
shared with the children so they have increasing control over their 
next learning steps.  
 
Teachers are being responsive to the learners by using flexible 
grouping based on the needs as they arise. Teachers are using a 
range of grouping including social grouping, mixed ability grouping 
and work shopping.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Target- Clear evidence of the range of Co Teaching Models 
being used across our school in a planned and deliberate 
way.  
Teachers are able to name the co-teaching models more confidently 
and are deliberately choosing which model best suits the desired 
learning outcomes. There is evidence of which co-teaching model is 
being used within planning and daily timetables.  
 
Spaces for learning are evident across the learning environments 
and are collaboratively designed and reflected upon. Spaces for 
learning are purposeful and children are able to make decisions 
about which space best suits their learning.  
 

acts to bring this alive 
within the programme. 
This was supported 
with resources as well 
as a NEDS mindset 
show. We also talked 
to the kids in whole 
school assemblies 
about this concept. 
Some teachers made 
‘Learning Pit’ displays 
and examples of 
language children 
could use.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Co-teaching models- 
We ran professional 
learning teacher only 
days with Mark 
Osbourne and set 
ourselves goals. We 
purposefully revisited 
these regularly and 
shared examples of 
how people were being 

in other Curriculum 
areas such as 
Mathematics.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue to 
prioritise this and 
provide 
professional 
learning and 
collaborative time 
for teachers to 
build on their 
knowledge and 
application of the 
co-teaching 
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developmental approach and to support 

teachers to identify children’s gifts and talents 

leading to children with self-efficacy.  

 

● Using digital tools to support teachers to 

optimise learning programmes  

 

 
Ensure that all students are ​progressing​ and 
achieving​ their potential in relation to the ​NZ 
Curriculum​. 

2.1:  ​To ensure children are experiencing a broad 
and rich learning programme which integrates 
all areas of the New Zealand Curriculum.  
Physical Education programmes​ intentionally develop 

children’s fundamental skills (locomotor and manipulative) 

and love of Sport and PE.  

● Promoted and fostered an enjoyment of sport 

and physical activity through play and organised 

games.  

● Continued our strong relationship between 

Puketaha School and Project Energise. 

● Most children participated in a PE programme 3x 

per week minimum where possible.  

● Aimed to improve children and parents/whanau 

attitudes towards being active. 

● All environments are resourced with age 

appropriate resources.  

● Connected with Play.Sport (COL) to help enhance 

Physical Education across the school with a 

growing emphasis on Well Being. 

 

The ​Arts ​provides an opportunity for children to develop 

and show our 6C’s and Values as well as express 

themselves through art, music, drama and dance. It aims to 

recognise and then foster children’s skills and knowledge, 

talents and gifts in this area.  

● Started to foster dramatic, artistic and musical 

play through the Play Based Learning approach. 

● Roopu Puuawai had their annual production. 

Target- Learning Through Play is an integral element to the 
Year 1 and 2 programme design. With an obvious 
progression from Year 1 to Year 2.   
Learning through play has been developed further and is an 
important aspect to the Kaakano Learning Programmes. Teachers 
have continued to build their pedagogical beliefs which align with 
the Learning through Play ideas and have designed their 
programme accordingly. Children are transitioning from ECE 
smoothly and enjoying coming to school.  
 
 
Teachers long term planning and unit planning demonstrates the 
connections that are being made across the curriculum in an 
authentic way, based on the maturation of the learners.  
 
Physical Education has been more evident during classroom 
programmes and children are being active at least 3 times a week 
across each learning environment.  
 
Teachers have taken part in Professional Learning sessions 
facilitated by Project Energise which has given teachers some 
practical and fun ideas to incorporate in their lessons.  
 
More resources were purchased for PE lessons and are well 
organised into class sets.  
 
The school offers a large number of sports teams to be part of each 
term including touch, netball, cricket, basketball and hockey.  
 
The production was very successful and all students from Year 5-8 
had a role to play.  
 
All students took part in the Footsteps dance programme and 
performed to parents at the end of the year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

deliberate with these 
models.  

Learning through Play- 
Continued with 
professional 
development in this 
area uterlising the PLD 
provided through 
TePaeHere. Teachers 
worked on a 
collaborative inquiry. 
What didn’t work- 
having a lead teacher 
to initiate this and 
providing a unit. It was 
better coming from a 
collaborative approach 
using a TAI.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

models. Ongoing 
self- review to help 
us continue to plan 
next steps. Make 
sure our induction 
process also 
supports new 
teachers to get up 
to speed with the 
models and 
pedagogy behind 
them.  
 
Learning Through 
Play will continue 
to be an area we 
invest in. Continue 
with Professional 
Learning in this 
area and allow for 
opportunities for 
teachers to visit 
other schools and 
network. Support 
teachers to self- 
review their 
learning needs and 
plan next steps 
through the 
Collaborative TAI 
process.  
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● Continued to foster a love of singing by providing 

regular opportunities for children to sing songs 

they enjoy together as a Roopu.  

● Our Senior students led assemblies. 

● Students had the opportunity to lead their Roopu 

hui’s.  

● All children were encouraged to take part in the 

Footsteps programme. 

● Teachers have planned for an Arts perspective in 

our Global Concept/Rich Topic. 

● Continued to embrace our Bi-cultural heritage 

through the learning of Tikanga - Waiata, Te Reo 

Kori. 

● Childrens’ art is presented for our community 

throughout our environments. 

 

● The Global Concept is used across the school as a way 

to connect the learning in all the environments and as 

a context for integrating the curriculum.  

 

 

 

2.2: ​To improve the number of students 
achieving and progressing within the NZ English 
Curriculum. 
 
● Instructional teaching is differentiated in order to 

personalise reading and writing.  

● Student improvement and achievement was 

monitored, measured, analysed with targets set and 

reviewed in relation to the New Zealand Curriculum.  

● Quality assessment for learning practices  informed 

teaching and learning programmes as well as 

informing overall teacher judgements (OTJ). 

● We continued to develop our understanding of 

designing curriculum that is coherent, making links 

between reading, writing and speaking as well as 

across subjects.  

● All teachers have continued to develop their 

pedagogical content knowledge at the curriculum level 

their students are expected to be achieving as well as 

the level above and below.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Target- To have all students engaged in a rich and broad 
learning programme with the Global Concept as a common 
thread. 
We have improved our ability to choose a Global Concept that is 
relatable to all levels of the school and allows for the teachers to 
design the content based on the children’s interests and questions.  
 
 
Reading 
Target 2019 - ​100% of Year 8 children achieving at Level 3 or 
above. This target was achieved.  
 
Actual 2019 - Year 8’s: ​3% Level 3, 17% Level Early 4, 38% 
Level 4, 42% Level Early 5 or above 
 
Year 8: 

● Twenty eight (97%) of children are achieving within 
or above the expected curriculum levels.  

○ One child (3%) has had ongoing support and 

was part of the Feuerstein programme. Our 

next step is to pass on information to their 

secondary school.  This child is still achieving 

at Level 3 of the NZC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rich, broad Curriculum 
with a Global Concept 
as it’s theme- ​We have 
learnt to make sure our 
Global Concept is a 
concept rather than a 
context. When the 
content has been 
predetermined it has 
been less flexible for 
teachers to adjust to 
suit the interest, needs, 
maturations of the 
learners across Year 
0-8. We are improving 
our ability to 
collectively decide on a 
concept that has scope. 

Reading Year 8 Target 
This was achieved 
because we used 2018 
data to predict each 
child’s potential 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue to build 
on our ability to 
collaboratively 
decide on a Global 
Concept. Keep 
records of our more 
successful concepts 
and the learning 
opportunities that 
came from them 
across the school. 
Use our appraisal 
systems to provide 
teachers with 
feedback about 
programme design 
and support 
teachers to self 
review and improve 
their impact for all 
learners. 
 
Continue to value 
our Reading 
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● The Writing Goals have continued to be used across 

the school. 

● We have more effectively used  the co-teaching 

strategies to provide more time for students who need 

greater support, as well as ensure greater choice 

around learning environments and further develop 

Learner Agency.  

● We have Moderated writing within and across 

Learning Environments and teams.  

● Continued to monitor and support families with low 

attendance levels.  

● We have continued to foster a ​safe environment 

(Manaakitanga) ​for all children to develop 

independence in writing. 

 
Years 0-3 
 
● T2S (Transition to School) pack with literacy based 

resources to introduce children to some fundamental 

readings skills before they start school. 

● T2S transitioning with a series of regular classroom 

visits, where teachers can build relationships with new 

entrant children before they start and begin to work 

on some basic reading knowledge and skills. 

● Daily reading and writing has been valued (consistent 

teacher aide support where we can). 

● Continued to communicate with home about how 

parents can build on their child’s learning when they 

read at home. 

● Teachers continued to work collaboratively to design 

programmes to help meet children's needs.  

● Teachers have started to utilize the co-teaching 

strategies to group children closely to their needs. 

● Junior teachers have continued to strengthen “Sounds 

for Spelling” practices to build children’s phonological 

knowledge. Jolly phonics.  

● Continued to analyse and act on SEA / 6 Year Net 

results. 

● Continued personalising learning and working closely 

alongside emergent writers. 

● Continued ESOL professional learning for teachers. 

Analysis Maaori Students ​  ​100% are considered to be 

succeeding within the NZC for Reading.  

● 59% of children are considered to be exceeding the 
expected curriculum levels.  

● The one Maaori Child who was receiving Reading 
Recovery last year has made accelerated progress (1 
NZC Level) and is now achieving at the expected 
curriculum level.  

Writing 

Target 2019 - Year 8’s - ​100% achieving at Level 3 or above. 
This target was not achieved.  
Actual 2019 - Year 8’s: ​97% achieving Level 3 or above 
Year 8​: 

● Four children (13%)  have not achieved Early Level 4 
of the NZC , three of which are at Level 3. 

○ Three  are boys and one is a girl 
○ Twenty five (86%) children  are learning and 

achieving within Level 4 of the NZC 
○ One child is working at Early Level 3. This 

child displayed dyslexic tendencies.  
 
 
Target- ​75% Year 7 achieving Early Level 4 or above,  
Actual- Year 7: ​50% achieving Early Level 4 or above,  
Year 7​: 

● Three (13%) of  children are needing monitoring 

○ Two of the three children are boys and one is 

a girl. One of these children we continue to 

partner family with attendance. 

○ Twelve (50%) children are learning and 

achieving within Level 4 of the NZC 

 
Target-​ 85% Year 2 achieving Level 1 or above 
Actual- Year 2:​ 67% achieving Level 1 
Year 2: 

● 14 children  (33%) are represented in the needs 
monitoring data 

achievement. We put 
interventions in place 
for the child we were 
concerned about. 
Reading remains a 
strength at Puketaha 
School.  

 

Writing Year 8 Target- 
The one child that did 
not meet this target 
had dyslexic tendencies 
but did not have any 
formal testing to 
confirm this as the cost 
for Speld was a barrier 
for the family and he 
did not qualify for RTLB 
support. GAP analysis 
testing indicated too 
late some possible 
learning needs.  

Writing- Year 7 
Target- ​The purpose of 
this target was to 
continue to push the 
children who were 
already doing 
particularly well. We 
overestimated how 
many children would 
continue to make 
accelerated progress 
as a proportion of 
children needed to 
spend more time in 
Level 3 to make sure 

Programmes and 
use our appraisal 
system to help 
teachers reflect on 
the teaching 
approaches they 
are using and the 
impact their 
teaching strategies 
are having on 
learners.  
 
Support teachers to 
inquire into how to 
best meet the 
emerging needs of 
our learners in 
Writing. Teachers 
will be supported to 
use assessment 
data gained from 
assessments such 
as the GAP 
analysis. Use 
quality resources as 
a tool to implement 
spelling and 
grammar into the 
learning 
programme for 
Year 5-8.  
Support teachers to 
inquire into how to 
best continue the 
Jolly Phonics 
learning from Year 
1-2 and what this 
continuation will 
look like in Year 
3-5. Use 
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● Reading Recovery​ for identified children at their 5.6 

month SEA assessment.  

 

Years 4 - 8 
 
● Further developed our use of relevant and meaningful 

texts as part of our ‘supported inquiry’ topics. 

● Continued to build on the resources used in senior 

reading programmes, in particular high interest 

reading materials for boys.  

● Used Effective Literacy Practice and implement a 

variety of approaches to teaching Reading - in 

particular Shared Reading. As well as PLD with Sheena 

Cameron.  

● Continued with consistent and high quality Guided 

Reading programmes with explicit teaching to need. 

● Implemented the ‘Toe by Toe’ programme to children 

who have been identified (Year 4/5) with specific 

literacy needs.  

● Aimed to write daily, looking for opportunities across 

the curriculum – writing mileage in a variety of 

contexts. 

● Further developed our pedagogy around Formative 

Assessment in Writing - thoughtful writing planning, 

share clear learning intentions and success criteria, 

goal setting and self-evaluation, relevant and timely 

feedback (close the gap strategy) and monitoring of 

achievement. 

● Station Teaching/ Alternative Teaching for direct 

instruction to target specific needs. 

● Continued the use of graphic organisers to help 

students categorise/organise their ideas. 

● Used Effective Literacy Practice and implemented a 

variety of approaches to teaching writing i.e: a greater 

level of modelling of what good writing looks like 

through workshops with target groups. 

● Worked towards engaging ‘reluctant/less confident’ 

writers by continuing to choose topics for writing that 

are ​relevant to the students’ lives (Whanaungatanga) 

and/or have a real life application.  

○ Within this, four children (10%) are 
considered to need intervention 

○ Of the others, one has been referred to CDC 
due to gross and fine motor skill difficulties 
which also affects speech, three have a 
suspected learning difficulty (dyslexia), one 
has a background of trauma,  and two 
children have difficulty with oral language 
which affects their ability to sound out 
words.  

○ One child is being reclassified at Year 2 for 
next year.  

 

Analysis Maaori Students ​  ​94% are considered to be 

succeeding within the NZC for Writing.  

● Our Maaori Students are again achieving more 
favourably when compared to all other children.  

● There is no disparity between Maaori Boys and 
Maaori Girls.  

● Only one child needs monitoring with Writing. This 
particular student has low attendance and we are 
consistently partnering Mum and wider whanau to 
support her getting to school.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

their learning was solid 
before moving into 
Level 4. This was an 
aspirational goal. One 
child had low 
attendance in 2019 
which we have worked 
closely with the family 
and have recently seen 
an improvement here.  

Writing Year 2 Target- 
It emerged over the 
year that the children 
who we predicted 
would progress, are 
indicating some 
learning barriers 
opposed to just not 
being ‘Curriculum 
Ready’.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

collaborative 
inquiry as a way of 
working towards 
meeting our 
targets in Writing.  
 
 
Purchase our own 
‘Lucid Rapid’ 
screening tool for 
dyslexia to help 
teachers 
understand 
possible learning 
barriers for our 
learners.  
 
Utilize our LSC to 
help make 
accelerated 
progress with our 
target learners.  
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● Ongoing professional learning conversations about 

individual students’ pieces of writing to identify next 

steps have continued. 

● Continued the use of Google Docs as a ‘tool’ to 

encourage ​collaboration between teachers and 

students as well as students and students (AKO). ​ In 

addition, provided a more flexible medium for 

teachers to monitor writers more effectively and 

support these students to write with more 

consideration.  

● Continued and grow our ‘real audience’ to provide a 

purpose for these writers to share their learning. 

● Continued to break up ‘inquiry based’ writing with 

‘quick writes’ (Sheena Cameron) as a way to ‘play’ 

with words and ideas. 

● Started to inquire into how to explicitly teach spelling 

strategies based on need (Joy Alcock). 

 

2.3:  ​To improve the number of students 
achieving and progressing within the NZ 
Mathematics Curriculum. 
 
● Strong emphasis on Numeracy in Years 1-3. 

● Guided Mathematics programmes evident in all 

classrooms. 

● Targeted TAI’s, professional learning and 

development around the identified areas for 

improvement and planned actions. 

● Ongoing focus on linking Mathematics with rich topic 

and the process of inquiry to support the application 

of Mathematical concepts. 

● Increased focus placed on our learners’ ability to 

apply their skills and knowledge to mathematical 

problems. 

● Modelling books used in Mathematics to record 

children’s thinking.  

● Investigated strategies to engage learners and 

accelerate progress such as mixed ability problem 

solving and workshopping being responsive to 

emerging needs.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mathematics-  
Target 2019:  Year 8’s ​100% achieving Level 3 or above  
Actual 2019:  Year 8’s ​100% achieving Level 3 or above 
 
Year 8: 

● Five children (22%)  need monitoring. These children 
have had ongoing support while at Puketaha School, 
from IEP’s and  Feuerstein Programme. Our next step 
is to pass on information to their secondary school.  

 
Target- ​75% ​Year 7​ Students achieving Early Level 4 or above 
Actual- Year 7:  ​46% achieving Early Level 4 or above   
 
Year 7: 

● Two children (8%) need monitoring.  
○ Both of these children have been mentioned 

in the writing data , one having attendance 
issues. 

○ Twenty two (92%) of children are learning 
and achieving within Level 4 of the NZC. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mathematics  Year 8 
Target- ​This was 
achieved because we 
used 2018 data to 
predict each child’s 
potential achievement. 
We put interventions in 
place for the children 
we were concerned 
about. Teachers have 
used more hands on 
materials to support 
their target learners.  

Mathematics- Year 7 
Target- ​The purpose of 
this target was to 
continue to push the 
children who were 
already doing 
particularly well. We 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue with our 
in school COL role 
to continue to lift 
Mathematic 
programmes across 
the school.  
 
Inquire into 
learning tools that 
help children make 
meaning of 
Mathematical 
concepts- such as 
the use of 
Numicon.  
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Year 0-3 

● T2S (Transition to School) pack with Mathematics 

based resources to introduce children to some 

fundamental numeracy  skills before they start school.. 

● Continued to support students with making 

connections with more meaningful, authentic 

contexts. 

● Planning with a more intentional focus on fractions 

and basic facts teaching. 

 

Years 4-8 

● Continued to develop co –teaching strategies to foster 

added support with smaller groups, i.e. Station 

Teaching/ Alternative Teaching for direct instruction to 

target specific needs. 

● Continued to regular monitoring of student progress 

through our assessment schedule. 

● Improved accessibility to Mathletics within the 

classroom programme and as a home learning tool 

where teachers are regularly setting tasks for children 

to complete which align with the learning in class.  

● Resourced strategically to cater for learners needs: i.e 

Purchase of class set textbooks and online learning 

resources: eg: NZC Mathematics Caxton Educational 

online Resource. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target- ​85% ​Year 4​ students achieving  Level 2 or above   
Actual- Year 4’s: ​68% achieving Level 2 or above 
 
Year 4: 

● Two children (5%) are considered to need monitoring  
○ One child has experienced trauma  
○ The other child is taking part in the 

Feuerstein Programme  
 
 
Analysis Maaori Students​ - ​88% are considered to be 

succeeding or exceeding within the NZC for Mathematics.  

● One Year 6 child who is achieving Level 2 has made 
limited progress this year and will continue to be a 
focus. While we do not believe intervention is 
required yet, we will be taking intervention measures 
to support her progress in 2020. 

● The one Year 7 child is mentioned above with 
attendance and will have the same intervention 
measures as our Year 6 child.  

● Both of the Maaori children considered to need 
monitoring are girls.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

overestimated how 
many children would 
continue to make 
accelerated progress 
as a proportion of 
children needed to 
spend more time in 
Level 3 to make sure 
their learning was solid 
before moving into 
Level 4. This was an 
aspirational goal. One 
child had low 
attendance in 2019 
which we have worked 
closely with the family 
and have seen an 
improvement.  

Mathematics Year 4 
Target- ​The purpose of 
this target was to 
continue to push the 
children who were 
already performing 
particularly well. This 
was an aspirational 
goal. We 
overestimated the 
children’s ability to 
move through the 
Curriculum at an 
accelerated level.  

There is no disparity 
between Maaori and 
non Mori progress and 
achievement- this is 
because we are highly 
committed to our 
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2.4: ​ To further investigate and integrate 
authentic ways to embrace the teaching of 
Maaori Students in our Rich Curriculum.  
 
● Teachers have invested in learning more around 

Culture Competency. 

● School leaders have analysed the achievement of 

Maaori students and support teachers to improve the 

learning of our tamariki. 

● Every child has experienced Tikanga each week to 

support the understanding of Maaori language and 

protocols. Maaori students see that Maaori language 

and culture is a valued dimension of our school.  

● Integrated the Maaori Perspective into planning and 

our school Global Concepts.  

● Created guidelines to support teachers in ways to 

embrace the teaching of Maaori in our rich curriculum 

- What’s the Maaori Perspective ​(Whanaungatanga). 

● Continued a focus on strong partnerships between 

home and school. 
 

 

 

 

Target- Maaori language is evident around the school. 
 
Weekly Tikanga lessons were highly successful and students 
have continued to improve their understanding of Tikanga 
and build their Te Reo Maaori. Children have a positive 
attitude towards Tikanga each week and are highly engaged.  
 
There is evidence across the school within teachers planning 
and curriculum delivery of the Maaori perspective being 
considered and explored within lesson, in particular during 
reading and rich topic.  
 
Teachers are practising and becoming increasingly more 
confident to use Te Reo in their everyday language.  
 
 
 
 
 

culturally responsive 
pedagogy such as 
relationships, 
personalising learning 
and learner agency.  

 

 

Maaori language 
evident around the 
school- ​Teachers are 
supporting each other 
to take risks with using 
Te Reo. Weekly 
Tikanga is bringing Te 
Reo more to the 
forefront. Little 
deliberate acts such as 
school signs in Te Reo 
and more use of Te Reo 
during assemblies are 
also helping us achieve 
this goal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue with our 
in school COL role 
to lift Cultural 
Competency across 
our school. Self 
review where we 
are at and our next 
collective steps to 
build on our 
learning further. 
Develop some 
targets for learners 
to achieve by the 
time they leave 
Puketaha School- 
for example- 
children will be able 
to confidently 
deliver their mihi to 
an audience by the 
end of Year 8.  
 
Continue to invest 
in weekly Tikanga 
lessons for all 
learners.  
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Page 1  Version 2 

Open Meeting 
 

To Discretionary and Funding Committee 
From Clive Morgan 

General Manager Community Growth 
Date 28 October 2020 

Prepared by  Lianne van den Bemd 
  Community Development Advisor 

Chief Executive Approved Y 
Reference  # GOV0514 / 2925428 
Report Title Waitetuna School – Purchase new set of rugby goal 

posts 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present an application for funding from Waitetuna School, 
towards the cost of purchasing a new set of rugby goal posts. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the report from the General Manager Community Growth be received; 
 
AND THAT an allocation of $............................... is made to the Waitetuna School 
towards the cost of purchasing a new set of rugby goal posts; 
 
OR 
 
AND THAT the request from the Waitetuna School towards the cost of 
purchasing a new set of rugby goal posts is declined / deferred until 
……………………. for the following reasons: 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
Waitetuna School plays a pivotal role in the community and is the heart of where all things 
community happen. The community does not have a separate hall and relies on this facility for 
all its recreational and family activities. 
 
The school has identified a need for a new set of rugby goal posts to replace the old worn set. 
Volunteers will include the school board of trustees and other school community members, 
who will help with the installation of the new posts. 
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Page 2  Version 4.0 

4. OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 That the application is approved and an allocation of partial or full funding requested 

by made. 
4.2  That the application is declined. 
4.3  That the application is deferred. 

5. FINANCIAL 
 
Funding is available to allocate for the year. 
 
The project is noted to cost $4,074.35. Waitetuna School is seeking funding of $4,074.35 
towards the cost of purchasing a new set of rugby goal posts. 

GST Registered Yes 

Set of Accounts supplied Yes 

Previous funding has been received by this organisation Yes 

6. POLICY 
 

The application meets the criteria set in the Discretionary Grants Policy, one of which is that 
grants of $5,000.00 can be funded up to 100 percent at the discretion of the relevant 
community board or committee or Council’s Discretionary and Funding Committee. 

For grants above $5,000.00, a funding cap of 75 percent of the total project cost applies and 
other funding needs to be sought. 

Funds cannot be uplifted until all sufficient funds for the project are approved. 

7. ATTACHMENT 
 
Waitetuna School – Purchase new set of rugby goal posts 
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Amanda Nasilasila 
Amanda Nasilasila 

Disc %

Quotes valid for 30 days.

e & oe

QUOTE GST Registration:

Customer Order 

Date:
Quote:

If you wish to pay by online banking, our account details are:  Strata Sports Ltd, ANZ Bank 06 0401 0250019 00.
See website www.stratasports.co.nz/policies/ for further information on terms & conditions.

TOTAL

Freight
Subtotal

Account holders - payment due 20th month following date of invoice.  

GST

AmountPrice excl GSTDescriptionCode Quantity

Phone:  09 838 4999
Fax:  09 838 4888

Email:  enquiries@stratasports.co.nz
Website:  www.stratasports.co.nz

PO Box 21 790
Henderson
Auckland 0650
New Zealand

Strata Sports Ltd

Bill To:

Waitetuna School
129 Waitetuna Valley Road 
RD 1

Raglan  3295

Ship To:

Waitetuna School
129 Waitetuna Valley Road 
RD 1
Raglan  3295

Quote Rugby Posts

31/08/2020

$3,744.35
$330.00
$611.15

$4,685.50

00018775

82-381-356

1 G150/001 Rugby Posts Hot Dipped Galvanised –
Intermediate (extensions not included).  Includes 
ground sockets. (Pair).

$2,992.17 $2,992.17

1 G150/025 Extension Rugby Posts Galvanised 3m –
Intermediate (set of 4)

$752.18 $752.18

Allow 5-6 weeks for manufacturing plus a week for 
delivery.  FQ #00057158.
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